Calculus on Spaces with Higher Singularities

01010

B-W. Schulze

NCTS/Math Technical Report 2016-001

National Center for Theoretical Sciences Mathematics Division, Taiwan June 27, 2016

Calculus on Spaces with Higher Singularities

D.-C. Chang and B.-W. Schulze

Abstract. We establish extensions of the standard pseudo-differential calculus to specific classes of operators with operator-valued symbols occurring in symbolic hierarchies motivated by manifolds with higher singularities or stratified spaces.

Contents

Introduction	1
1. Singular Manifolds and Corner-degenerate Differential Operators	3
1.1. Corner Manifolds	3
1.2. Differential Operators and Principal Symbolic Hierarchies	4
1.3. Operators for Singularities of Lower Order	5
1.4. Singular Functions and Discrete Asymptotics	13
1.5. Parameter-dependent Edge Calculus	15
2. The Higher Iterative Calculus	16
2.1. Mellin Operators of Arbitrary Order	16
2.2. Compositions	19
2.3. Higher Kegel and Wedge Spaces	21
2.4. The Calculus for Singular Cones	26
2.5. Operators of Third Singularity Order	29
References	34

Introduction

Singular analysis is motivated by numerous and partly classical applications of physics and geometry, cf. [30], [24], [17], [18], see also the bibliographies there. The main intention of the present article is to give an idea on how algebras of pseudo-differential operators A can be organized when the underlying manifold M has singularities such as edges, boundaries or higher corners of some order. For a manifold with boundary the expectation is formally similar as in Boutet de Monvel's calculus, where the singular strata contribute an additional symbolic

²⁰⁰⁰ Mathematics Subject Classification. Primary 35S35; Secondary 35J70.

Key words and phrases. pseudo-differential operators, operator-valued symbols, Fourier and Mellin transform.

structure, in this case boundary symbols which contribute to ellipticity of boundary conditions, to parametrices of elliptic elements and to the Fredholm property when (in simplest cases) M is compact. It is natural to formulate similar structures in the case of manifolds $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ with higher singularities of order $k \in \mathbb{N}$, i.e., which are determined by a stratification

$$s(M) = \left(s_0(M), s_1(M), \dots, s_k(M)\right)$$

consisting of a sequence of smooth subspaces $s_j(M)$ for dim $s_j(M) > \dim s_{j+1}(M)$ for $j = 0, \ldots, k - 1$. The principal symbolic structure of operators A is given by sequences of components

$$\sigma(A) = \Big(\sigma_0(A), \sigma_1(A), \dots, \sigma_k(A)\Big).$$

An example of a singular space is the infinite cone

$$X^{\vartriangle} := (\mathbb{R}_+ \times X) / (\{0\} \times X) \in \mathfrak{M}_1$$

for any $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$; the case k = 0 indicates smoothness. In analysis over X^{Δ} we often pass to the corresponding open stretched cone

$$X^{\wedge} := \mathbb{R}_{+} \times X$$

in a prescribed equivalence class of splitting of variables into $(r, x) \in \mathbb{R}_+ \times X$, representing regular singularity.

Ellipticity of an operator A over $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ is defined by some bijectivity conditions for the components of $\sigma(A)$. In general, those require operator block matrices $\mathcal{A} = (A_{ij})$ containing A in the upper left corner, up to Green and Mellin summands which are produced in compositions and parametrices. Those are related to the asymptotics of solutions as well as to the structure of extra trace and potential conditions coming from the lower-dimensional strata of M, see also [12].

This paper is organized as follows: The first Chapter is aimed at developing the approach for singularities of order k = 1, 2. We discuss a new intrinsic definition of Kegel spaces and complete the insight on corner pseudo-differential algebras up to singularity order 2. In addition we suggest a simplified approach into singular functions of asymptotics which belong to the tools of Green, trace and potential operators. Note that even the lower order singular analysis contains challenges and unexpected difficulties. For instance, an analogue of the Atiyah-Singer index theorem according to the K-theoretic approach of [2] or Boutet de Monvel [4] on operators with the transmission property seems to be not achieved yet. The multiplicative behaviour of singular spaces, appearing in Cartesian products $M^{\Delta} \times N^{\Delta} \in \mathfrak{M}_2$ for $M, N \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ is hard to complete by multiplicative properties of associated operators, say, in terms of Künneth formulas for elliptic complexes. Edge algebras and numerous structures in the context of boundary value problems are a special case of corner problems, while cone algebras, are a special case of the boundary symbolic calculus. Details can be found in Rempel, Schulze [45] ,[53],

[56] and in a series of joint papers jointly with Chang [8], [9], [10], as well in joint papers with Liu [35], Wei [61], Seiler [59], Hedayat-Mahmoudi [26].

The second Chapter is devoted to singular analysis of order $k \ge 3$. We show that our approach is iterative under repeatedly forming cones and wedges, starting with some base of given singularity order. Aspects on operators up to singularity order 2 have been studied in joint papers with Calvo [6], Maniccia [39], Habal [22], Rungrottheera and Wong [50]. Higher singular operators have been studied in [57], [58] and in joint papers of the second author with Calvo and Martin [5], Habal and Chang [7], Chang and Hedayat-Mahmoudi [11], Lyu [38].

1. Singular Manifolds and Corner-degenerate Differential Operators

1.1. Corner Manifolds

The underlying corner manifolds M of singularity order $k \in \mathbb{N}$, where k = 0indicates smoothness, are defined as stratified spaces $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ such that for k > 0there is an $s_k(M) \in \mathfrak{M}_0$, $s_k(M) \subseteq M$, such that $M \setminus s_k(M) \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$, and there is a neighbourhood $V \subseteq M$ of $s_k(M)$ which has the structure of a locally trivial B_{k-1}^{Δ} -bundle over $s_k(M)$ for a compact $B_{k-1} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ where $B_{k-1}^{\Delta} := (\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times B_{k-1})/(\{0\} \times B_{k-1})$ is the infinite cone with base B_{k-1} , and the vertex $s_k(B_{k-1}^{\Delta})$ which is a single point. Often we briefly say that M is locally close to $s_k(M)$ modeled on $B_{k-1}^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}$ for $q_k := \dim s_k(M)$.

Note that $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ implies $X^{\Delta} \in \mathfrak{M}_1, X^{\Delta} \times X^{\Delta} \in \mathfrak{M}_2$, etc. More generally, $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k, \Omega \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ implies $M \times \Omega \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ and $\Omega = s_k(M \times \Omega) = s_k(M) \times \Omega$ which is in turn a special case of the rule $M \times N \in \mathfrak{M}_{k+l}$ for $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ for $N \in \mathfrak{M}_l$. We set dim $M := \dim s_0(M)$ for any $M \times \Omega \in \mathfrak{M}_k$.

For an $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ the B_{k-1}^{Δ} -bundle over $s_k(M)$ represents a neighbourhood of $s_k(M)$ in M. On a manifold $M \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with boundary $s_1(M)$ the situation is similar and quite common when we identify a collar neihgbourhood V of the boundary with the normal bundle with fibre \mathbb{R}_+ . In the general case, by replacing V by an $\mathbb{R}_+ \times B_{k-1}$ -bundle then the "bottom" $\{0\} \times B_{k-1}$ can be identified with an B_{k-1} -bundle which can be invariantly attached to $M \setminus s_k(M)$. Let \mathbb{M} denote the resulting space. The double 2 \mathbb{M} obtained by gluing together two copies of \mathbb{M} by identifying the common subspace $s_k(M)$ then belongs to \mathfrak{M}_{k-1} . In order to illustrate the situation we consider the case $M = B^{\Delta}$ for a $B \in \mathfrak{M}_0$. Then B^{Δ} belongs to \mathfrak{M}_1 , and we have $\mathbb{M} = \mathbb{R}_+ \times B$, $2\mathbb{B} = \mathbb{R} \times B$.

Remark 1.1. Observe that the strata $s_j(M)$ for $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ are not necessarily closed. For instance, if M is a disk in \mathbb{C} then $s_0(M)$ is the open interior, and $s_1(M)$ the boundary. If $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ is embedded in \mathbb{R}^n for some n and compact, then $s_k(M)$ is closed.

For constructions below on compact $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ we choose specific partitions of unity. First there are functions $\psi_{k,l}$, $l = 1, \ldots, N_k$ such that $\sum_{l=1}^{N_k} \psi_{k,l} = 1$ in a neighbourhood of $s_k(M)$. In addition we find functions $\psi_{k-1,l}$, $l = 1, \ldots, N_{k-1}$ such that $\sum_{l=1}^{N_{k-1}} \psi_{k-1,l} = 1$ in a neighbourhood of $s_{k-1}(M)$. Moreover, there are functions $\psi_{k-2,l}$, $l = 1, \ldots, N_{k-2}$ such that $\sum_{l=1}^{N_{k-2}} \psi_{k-2,l} = 1$ in a neighbourhood of $s_{k-2}(M)$. This process can be continued such that finally we obtain functions $\psi_{0,l}$, $l = 1, \ldots, N_0$ such that $\sum_{l=1}^{N_0} \psi_{0,l} = 1$ in a neighbourhood of $s_0(M)$. We choose all these functions in a way that they restrict to element in $C^{\infty}(s_0(M))$. For $\Psi := \sum \psi_{m,l}$ with summation over all m, l we set $\varphi_{m,l} := \psi_{m,l}/\Psi$. Then $\sum_{m,l} \varphi_{m,l} = 1$ and $\sum_{l=1}^{N_m} \varphi_{m,l} = 1$ in a neighbourhood of $s_m(M)$ and the functions $\psi_{m,l}$ form the desired partition of unity.

1.2. Differential Operators and Principal Symbolic Hierarchies

We now have a look at typical differential operators on spaces $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$. Let $\operatorname{Diff}^m(X)$ for any $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ be the Fréchet space of all differential operators on X of order m with smooth coefficients (in any local coordinates). An operator A on $s_0(M)$ for an $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k, k \geq 1$, is said to be an element in $\operatorname{Diff}^{\mu}_{\operatorname{deg}}(M)$ if in the case $\dim s_k(M) > 0$ it has the form

(1.1)
$$A = r^{-\mu} \sum_{j+|\alpha| \le \mu} a_{j\alpha}(r,y) \Big(-r \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \Big)^j (rD_y)^{\alpha}$$

for coefficients $a_{j\alpha}(r, y) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \Omega, \operatorname{Diff}_{\operatorname{deg}}^{\mu-(j+|\alpha|)}(B_{k-1}))$, and in the case dim $s_k(M) = 0$

(1.2)
$$A = r^{-\mu} \sum_{j=0}^{\mu} a_j(r) \left(-r \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^j$$

for coefficients $a_j(r) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+, \operatorname{Diff}_{\deg}^{\mu-j}(B_{k-1}))$. Clearly, deg can be omitted for k-1=0. As in the preceding subsection, $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ is locally close to $s_k(M)$ modeled on $X_{k-1}^{\Delta} \times s_k(M)$ and the Fréchet spaces $\operatorname{Diff}^{\nu}(X_{k-1})$ are defined by the iterative step before, where $\operatorname{Diff}^{\nu}(X)$ for $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ is the standard space of differential operators with smooth coefficients. For A given by (1.1) and (1.2) we set

(1.3)
$$\sigma_k(A)(y,\eta) = r^{-\mu} \sum_{j+|\alpha| \le \mu} a_{j\alpha}(0,y) \left(-r\frac{\partial}{\partial r}\right)^j (r\eta)^{\alpha}$$

and

(1.4)
$$\sigma_k(A)(v) = \sum_{j=0}^{\mu} a_j(0)v^j,$$

respectively. In (1.3) we assume $\eta \neq 0$. In (1.4) v is interpreted as a complex Mellin covariable, often regarded as an element of

$$\Gamma_{\lambda} := \{ v \in \mathbb{C} : \operatorname{Re} v = \lambda \}$$

for a suitable real λ , where λ is associated to a corresponding weight. For $A \in \text{Diff}^{\mu}(M), B \in \text{Diff}^{\nu}(M), M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$, and $\dim s_k(M) > 0$ we have $\sigma_k(AB)(y, \eta) = \sigma_k(A)(y, \eta)\sigma_k(B)(y, \eta)$. In the case $\dim s_k(M) = 0$ we have $\sigma_k(AB)(v) = \sigma_k(A)(v - \nu)\sigma_k(B)(v)$. For $A \in \text{Diff}^{\mu}_{\text{deg}}(M), k \geq 1$, we have at the same time $A \in \text{Diff}^{\mu}_{\text{deg}}(M \setminus s_k(M))$. Since $M \setminus s_k(M) \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ we can determine $\sigma_{k-1}(A)$, where we always have $\dim s_{k-1}(M) > 0$. Thus we get the full principal symbolic hierarchy $\sigma(A)$.

Example 1. Operators of the form

$$A := (r_1 \cdots r_k)^{-\mu} (r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 r_2 \partial_{r_2})^{j_2} \cdots (r_1 r_2 \cdots r_k \partial_{r_k}^{j_k})$$

for $j_1 + \cdots + j_k = k$ belong to $\operatorname{Diff}_{\operatorname{deg}}^{\mu}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \cdots \times \overline{\mathbb{R}}_+)$ over $M := \overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \cdots \times \overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \in \mathfrak{M}_k$.

1.3. Operators for Singularities of Lower Order

By singularities of lower order we understand the cases $k \leq 2$ which are necessary for the iterative process. We first look at the case dim $(s_k(M)) > 0$. Basics for k = 2 are developed in the above-mentioned articles, especially in [26] T.he case dim $(s_k(M)) = 0$ is a slight modification. The operator-valued symbols (1.4) induce families of continuous operators between Kegel spaces $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$

(1.5)
$$\sigma_k(A)(y,\eta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(X^{\wedge})$$

for $s, \gamma \in \mathbb{R}$ when $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ and k = 1 and for $s \in \mathbb{R}$, $\gamma = (\gamma_1, \gamma_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2$ when $X \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ and k = 2. In this case we define $\gamma - \mu := (\gamma_i - \mu)_{i=1,2}$. While Kegel spaces for manifolds $M \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge are a traditional tool in singular analysis the definition for $X \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ is by no means straightforward. Let us briefly recall some notions in this context. We systematically employ the weighted Mellin transform of weight $\gamma \in \mathbb{R}$

$$M_{\gamma}u(v) := \int_0^\infty r^v u(r') dr'/r'$$

first regarded as a continuous map $M_{\gamma} : r^{\gamma}L^2(\mathbb{R}_+) \to L^2(\Gamma_{1/2-\gamma})$ where spaces on Γ_{λ} are interpreted as the standard ones with respect to the real variable $\operatorname{Re} v$ for $v \in \Gamma_{\lambda}$. We then have weighted Mellin pseudo-differential operators on the rhalf-axis

(1.6)
$$\operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma}(f)u := M_{\gamma,v \to r}^{-1} f(r, r', v) M_{\gamma, r' \to v} u$$

~ ~

for any $f(r, r', v) \in S^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}_+ \times \Gamma_{1/2-\gamma})$ in Hörmander's symbol class, later on to be generalized to operator-valued symbols, or, equivalently,

(1.7)
$$\operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma}(f)u(r) = \iint (r/r')^{-(1/2-\gamma+i\rho)} f(r,r',1/2-\gamma+i\rho)u(r')dr'/r'd\rho$$
for $d\rho = (2\pi i)^{-1}d\rho.$

D.-C. Chang and B.-W. Schulze

A separable Hilbert space H is said to be endowed with a group action $\kappa = \{\kappa_{\delta}\}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_{+}}$ if $\kappa_{\delta} : H \to H$ is an isomorphism for every δ , moreover, $\kappa_{\delta}\kappa_{\delta'} = \kappa_{\delta\delta'}$ for every $\delta, \delta' \in \mathbb{R}_{+}$, and $h \mapsto \kappa_{\delta}h$ represents an element $f(\delta) \in C(\mathbb{R}_{+}, H)$ for every $h \in H$. A Fréchet space E is said to be endowed with a group action κ , if $E = \lim_{j \in \mathbb{N}} E^{j}$ is written as a projective limit of Hilbert spaces E^{j} with continuous embeddings $E^{j} \to E^{0}$ for all j, where E^{0} is endowed with $\kappa = \{\kappa_{\delta}\}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_{+}}$ as well as all E^{j} with $\kappa_{\delta}|_{E^{j}}$ for all j.

For two Hilbert spaces H and \tilde{H} with group action κ and $\tilde{\kappa}$, respectively, $\Omega \subseteq \mathbb{R}^p$ open, we have the spaces

$$S^{\mu}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^q; H, \tilde{H})$$

of operator-valued symbols of order $\mu \in \mathbb{R}$, consisting of those $a(y, \eta) \in C^{\infty}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^{q}, \mathcal{L}(H, \tilde{H}))$, satisfying the "twisted" symbolic estimates

$$\|\tilde{\kappa}_{\langle \eta \rangle}^{-1} \{ D_y^{\alpha} D_{\eta}^{\beta} a(y,\eta) \} \kappa_{\langle \eta \rangle} \|_{\mathcal{L}(H,\tilde{H})} \le c \langle \eta \rangle^{\mu - |\beta|}$$

for all $(y,\eta) \in K \times \mathbb{R}^q$, K compact in Ω , all $\alpha \in \mathbb{N}^p$, $\beta \in \mathbb{N}^q$, for constants $c = c(\alpha, \beta, K) > 0$. A similar definition works for classical symbols with components of twisted homogeneity $\mu - j$, $j \in \mathbb{N}$. Similarly, we form symbol spaces $S^{\mu}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^q; E, \tilde{E})$ for Fréchet spaces E, \tilde{E} with group action. We tacitly use this material below and refer to the monographs [53], [56] or [15].

Let H be a separable Hilbert space with group action $\kappa = \{\kappa_{\delta}\}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_+}$. Then $\mathcal{W}^s(\mathbb{R}^q, H)$ for $s \in \mathbb{R}$ is defined as the completion of $\mathcal{S}(\mathbb{R}^q, H)$ with respect to the norm

(1.8)
$$\|u\|_{\mathcal{W}^{s}(\mathbb{R}^{q},H)} = \left\{ \int \langle \eta \rangle^{2s} \|\kappa_{\langle \eta \rangle}^{-1}(Fu)(\eta)\|_{H}^{2} d\eta \right\}^{1/2}$$

for $d\eta = (2\pi)^{-q} d\eta$. The definition extends to the case of a smooth manifold Y rather than \mathbb{R}^q , and for non-compact Y we also have "comp"/"loc"-versions of such spaces. Another generalization concerns Fréchet spaces E instead of Hilbert spaces, written as projective limits of Hilbert spaces with group action. We also employ such generalizations.

Given a Hilbert space H with group action $\kappa = {\kappa_{\delta}}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_+}$ we have local weighted Mellin Sobolev spaces $\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^q, H)$, defined as completion of $C_0^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^q, H)$ with respect to the norm

(1.9)
$$\left\{\int_{\mathbb{R}^q}\int_{\Gamma_{(b+1)/2-\gamma}}\langle v,\eta\rangle^{2s}\|\kappa_{\langle v,\eta\rangle}^{-1}M_{r\to v}F_{y\to\eta}(u)(v,\eta)\|_H^2dvd\eta\right\}^{1/2}.$$

The number b is fixed in connection with extra information from the space H, for instance, b := n in the case $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$ for $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$, $n = \dim X$ which is endowed with the group action

(1.10)
$$(\kappa_{\delta} u)(r, x) = \delta^{(n+1)/2} u(\delta r, x).$$

For q = 0, $H = \mathbb{C}$ and $\kappa_{\delta} = \mathrm{id}_{H}$, $\delta \in \mathbb{R}_{+}$, we have the spaces $\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_{+})$ as well as $\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$. The latter ones are obtained for $X \in \mathfrak{M}_{0}$, $n := b := \dim X$ and $H := \mathbb{C}$ by completing $C_{0}^{\infty}(X^{\wedge})$ with respect to the norm

$$\|u\|_{\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})} := \Big\{ \sum_{j=0}^{N} \|\varphi_{j}u \circ (\mathrm{id}_{\mathbb{R}_{+}} \times \chi_{j}^{-1})_{*})\|_{\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_{+} \times \mathbb{R}^{n})}^{2} \Big\}^{1/2}$$

where (U_1, \ldots, U_N) is a covering of X by coordinate neighbourhoods, $(\varphi_1, \ldots, \varphi_N)$ a subordinate partition of unity, $\chi_j : U_j \to \mathbb{R}^n$ charts, moreover, $(\cdot)_*$ indicates the push forward under the respective diffeomorphism, and $\mathrm{id}_{\mathbb{R}_+}$ denotes the identity diffeomorphism on \mathbb{R}_+ . For $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ a possible definition of the Kegel space $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$ is

(1.11)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}) = \{\omega u + (1-\omega)v : u \in \mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}), v \in H^s_{\text{cone}}(X^{\wedge})\},\$$

where $H^s_{\text{cone}}(X^{\wedge})$ is modeled for $r \to \infty$ on standard Sobolev spaces on \mathbb{R}^{n+1} of smoothness *s* in coordinates \tilde{x} over $\mathbb{R}_+ \times U$ for any coordinate neighbourhood *U* on *X* diffeomorphic to the open unit ball in \mathbb{R}^n under the identification $\mathbb{R}_+ \times U \to \{\text{cone}\}$, where "cone" indicates a conical subset in $\mathbb{R}^{n+1} \setminus \{0\}$ obtained by $\{\tilde{x} = (\tilde{x}_0, r\tilde{x}') : \tilde{x}_0 = r, \tilde{x}' := (\tilde{x}_1, \dots, \tilde{x}_n)\}$ for \tilde{x}' in the above-mentioned open unit ball in \mathbb{R}^n . The definition of $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$ does not depend on the choice of the cut-off function ω , because of $\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}), H^s_{\text{cone}}(X^{\wedge}) \subseteq H^s_{\text{loc}}(X^{\wedge})$.

We have

(1.12)
$$\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(X^{\wedge}) = \mathcal{H}^{0,0}(X^{\wedge}) = r^{-n/2}L^2(X^{\wedge})$$

and (1.10) is unitary in $r^{-n/2}L^2(X^{\wedge})$. Moreover, if $\mathbb{K}^{\beta}(r)$ is any strictly positive smooth function on \mathbb{R}_+ that is equal to 1 for $r > \varepsilon_1$ and r^{β} for $0 < r < \varepsilon_0$ for some $0 < \varepsilon_0 < \varepsilon_1 < \infty$ then we have the relation

(1.13)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}) = \mathbb{K}^{\gamma} \mathcal{K}^{s,0}(X^{\wedge})$$

where \mathbb{K}^{γ} is regarded as operator of multiplication by the corresponding function.

There is another "intrinsic" definition of Kegel spaces which is apparently more natural in analogous form for X of higher singular order. We therefore sketch more tools from the edge calculus of singularity order 1. If X is a smooth closed manifold of dimension n then $L^{\mu}_{(cl)}(X; \mathbb{R}^d)$ means the space of classical or non-classical (indicated by subscript "(cl)") parameter-dependent pseudo-differential operators on X of order $\mu \in \mathbb{R}$ in its natural Fréchet topology. Observe, in particular, that $L^{-\infty}(X; \mathbb{R}^d) = \bigcap_{\mu \in \mathbb{R}} L^{\mu}(X; \mathbb{R}^d) = S(\mathbb{R}^d, L^{-\infty}(X))$ with $L^{-\infty}(X)$ being identified with $C^{\infty}(X \times X)$ via a fixed Riemannian metric on X. Let E be a Fréchet space. By $\mathcal{A}(U, E)$ for an open subset $U \subseteq \mathbb{C}$ we denote the space of all holomorphic functions in U with values in E in the Fréchet topology of uniform convergence on compact subsets of U. **Definition 1.2.** Let $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^d)$ denote the space of all $h(v, \zeta) \in \mathcal{A}(\mathbb{C}_v, L^{\mu}_{cl}(X; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta}))$ such that $h(\lambda + i\rho, \zeta) \in L^{\mu}_{cl}(X; \Gamma_{\lambda} \times \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ for every $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}$, uniformly in compact λ -intervals.

The alternative definition of Kegel spaces is due to the following result of the edge calulus, cf. [49], [38]. We set

(1.14)
$$M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta}) := \left\{ \tilde{h}(v,r\eta) : \tilde{h}(v,\tilde{\eta}) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}}) \right\}.$$

Elements of (1.14) are regarded as Mellin symbols, i.e., symbols of Mellin pseudo-differential operators

$$Op_M^{\gamma}(h)(\eta)u(r) = \int \int (r/r')^{-(1/2-\gamma+i\rho)} h(r, 1/2-\gamma+i\rho, \eta)u(r')dr'/r'd\rho$$

for $h(r, v, \eta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta}), d\rho = (2\pi)^{-1} d\rho$. The spaces $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta})$ have some

natural properties: First kernel cut-off gives us a continuous map

$$L^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(X;\Gamma_{\lambda}\times\mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta})\to M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta}).$$

The assertions of the following theorem are well-known, cf. [53] or [56] and valid in analogous form for holomorphic symbols in connection with singularities of higher order.

- **Theorem 1.3.** (i) Let $h(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta}), h|_{\Gamma_{\lambda}} \in L^{\mu-1}_{cl}(X;\Gamma_{\lambda}\times\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ for some λ . Then $h \in M^{\mu-1}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$.
 - (ii) $h(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta})$ entails $(T^{\beta}h)(v,\zeta) := h(v+\beta,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta})$ for every $\beta \in \mathbb{R}$.
 - (iii) For $h(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ we have $(\partial_v h)(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$.
 - (iv) For $h(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ and every δ , γ we have $\operatorname{Op}^{\delta}_M(h)(\zeta) = \operatorname{Op}^{\gamma}_M(h)(\zeta)$ on functions in $C^{\infty}_0(\mathbb{R}_+)$.
 - (v) For $h(v,\zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X;\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ we have $\operatorname{Op}^{\gamma}_M(h)(\zeta)r^{\alpha} = r^{\alpha}\operatorname{Op}^{\gamma}_M(T^{-\alpha}h)(\zeta)$ for every α, γ on $C^{\infty}_0(\mathbb{R}_+), (T^{-\alpha}h)(v,\zeta) = h(v-\alpha,\zeta).$

It is useful to enrich the space $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}})$ by an extra parameter $\iota \in \mathbb{R}^{w}$ for some $w \in \mathbb{N}$ by replacing $L^{\mu}_{cl}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}})$ by $L^{\mu}_{cl}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}})$. Let us denote the corresponding class by

(1.15) $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^q_{rn}).$

Clearly we have

$$M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta}) \subset M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta})$$

for every fixed $\iota \in \mathbb{R}^w$. Therefore, we often suppress the parameter ι though it could be added in many relations.

We need some observations on associated operators, similarly as technique from Kumano-go' calculus [33], or of Seiler [66]. Let

$$f(v,r\eta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta}), \, g(v,r\eta) \in M^{\nu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta}),$$

and set

(1.16)
$$A := r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - \nu - n/2}(f)(\eta), B := r^{-\nu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - n/2}(g)(\eta)$$

and form in admitted manner (since f, g are holomorphic in v) the composition

(1.17)
$$AB = r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - \nu - n/2}(f)(\eta) \circ r^{-\nu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - n/2}(g)(\eta)$$

Then

(1.18)
$$AB = r^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma-n/2}(h \# g)$$

for $h(v, r\eta) = f(v - \nu, r\eta)$ and

(1.19)
$$h \# g \sim \sum_{k=0}^{N} \frac{1}{k!} \partial_v^k h \big(-r \partial_r \big)^k g + r_{N+1}$$

where the remainder is a Mellin oscillatory integral (1.20)

$$r_{N+1} = \int_0^1 \frac{(1-\theta)^N}{N!} \iint t^{i\tau} \partial_v^{N+1} h(v+i\theta\tau,r\eta) \left(-r\partial_r\right)^{N+1} g(v,tr\eta) \frac{dt}{t} d\tau d\theta.$$

We obtain

(1.21)

$$r_{N+1}(v,r\eta) \in M_{\mathcal{O}}^{\mu+\nu-(N+1)}(X;\mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta})$$

and hence

Theorem 1.4. $h \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^q_{r\eta}), g \in M^{\nu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^q_{r\eta})$ entails $h \# g \in M^{\mu+\nu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^q_{r\eta})$.

The following result is known from [66] or [20], but our proof also applies in more complicated situations below. Since $q \in \mathbb{N}$ is arbitrary, we also may replace f, g by

$$f(r, v, \eta, \zeta), g(r, v, \eta, \zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q+d}_{r\eta, r\zeta})$$

for an additional parameter $\zeta \in \mathbb{R}^d$ for any $d \in \mathbb{N}$.

Theorem 1.5. For every $\mu, \gamma \in \mathbb{R}$ there exists an element $f^{\mu}(r, v, \eta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q}_{r\eta})$ such that for any sufficiently large $|\eta|$ the operator

(1.22)
$$r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma-n/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta) : \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(X^{\wedge})$$

is an isomorphism for every $s \in \mathbb{R}$.

Proof. We choose a parameter-dependent elliptic $\tilde{l}(\iota, \rho, \tilde{\eta}) \in L^{\mu}_{cl}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \Gamma_{\lambda} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}})$ and produce via kernel cut-off turning ρ on Γ_{λ} to the complex variable v an element $\tilde{f}(\iota, v, \tilde{\eta}) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{w}_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q}_{\tilde{\eta}})$. Then, setting $f^{\mu}(r, v, \eta) := \tilde{f}(\iota, v, r\eta)$ we first see that (1.22) is an elliptic operator in the cone algebra over X^{\wedge} with conormal symbol

(1.23)
$$f^{\mu}(\iota, v, 0) : H^{s}(X) \to H^{s-\mu}(X)$$

which is an elliptic pseudo-differential operator with parameter $(\iota, v) \in \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \Gamma_{(n+1)/2-\gamma}$ and bijective for sufficiently large $|\iota|$. If necessary, we modify the Mellin symbol vy a translation in the complex *v*-plane. At the same time (1.22) is an edge symbol in its dependence on η which is homogeneous in the sense

(1.24)
$$r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - n/2}(f^{\mu})(\delta \eta) = \delta^{\mu} \kappa_{\delta} \big(r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma - n/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta) \big) \kappa_{\delta}^{-1}.$$

Composing $r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma-n/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta)$ from the right with $r^{\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma-\mu-n/2}((f^{\mu})^{-1})(\eta)$ we can first commute r^{μ} in the middle through the Mellin action, cf. Theorem 1.3 (iv), and then apply the above-mentioned composition result. Then, for sufficiently large $\iota, |\eta|$ the remainder becomes small and hence we can compute the inverse of $r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma-n/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta)$.

Thus, setting $R^{-s}(\eta) := r^s \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma+s-n/2}(f^{-s})(\eta)$ for suitable $f^{-s}(\eta) \in M^{-s}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^q_{r\eta})$ we can define

(1.25)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}(\eta)\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(X^{\wedge})$$

for any $|\eta|$ sufficiently large.

Kegel spaces give rise to edge spaces, cf. relation (1.8) for $H = \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(X^{\wedge})$.

For singularity order 2 we now consider a compact element $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge $Y := s_1(B)$, dim Y =: q > 0, and define spaces $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ for $s \in \mathbb{R}$ and a pair of weights $\gamma := (\gamma_1, \gamma_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2$. Assume, for convenience, that Y has a neighbourhood V which corresponds to a trivial X^{Δ} -bundle over Y for some compact $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$. On our $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge Y, locally near the edge modeled on $X^{\Delta} \times Y$ we first form the edge space $\mathcal{W}^s(Y, \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge}))$ for a weight $\gamma_1 \in \mathbb{R}$ and define

(1.26)
$$H^{s,\gamma_1}(B) := \omega_1 \mathcal{W}^s(Y, \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge})) + (1-\omega_1) H^s(2\mathbb{B})$$

for any cut-off function $\omega_1 := \omega_1(r_1)$ on B, i.e., some function in $C^{\infty}(s_0(B))$ which is equal to 1 in a neighbourhood of Y. Set $H^{\infty,\gamma_1}(B) := \bigcap_{s \in \mathbb{R}} H^{s,\gamma_1}(B)$.

Let

(1.27)
$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)) := \omega_2 \mathcal{H}^{\infty, \gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)) + (1 - \omega_2) \mathcal{S}(\mathbb{R}, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_+},$$

where $\omega_2 := \omega_2(r_2)$ is a cut-off function on the r_2 half-axis. We form the space of

edge pseudo-differential operators

(1.28)
$$L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d) \subset L^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(s_0(B; \mathbb{R}^d))$$

for weight data $\boldsymbol{g}_B := (\gamma_1, \gamma_1 - \mu, \Theta_1)$, with $\Theta_1 := (-(\vartheta_1 + 1), 0]$ for a $\vartheta_1 \in \mathbb{N}$.

Definition 1.6. Let $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d)$ denote the space of all

$$h(v_2,\zeta) \in \mathcal{A}(\mathbb{C}_{v_2}, L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})))$$

such that $h(\lambda + i\rho, \zeta) \in L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \Gamma_{\lambda} \times \mathbb{R}^d)$ for every $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}$, uniformly in compact λ -intervals.

Definition 1.7. For compact $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge Y, locally near Y modeled on $X^{\Delta} \times Y$ for an $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ and $\gamma := (\gamma_1, \gamma_2)$ we define

$$\begin{aligned} &(1.29) \\ &\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) := \omega_2 \omega_1 \mathcal{H}^{0,\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y, \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge})) + (1-\omega_2)\omega_1 \mathcal{H}^{0,0}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y, \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge})) \\ &+ (1-\omega_2)(1-\omega_1)\mathcal{K}^{0,0}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge})) + \omega_2(1-\omega_1)\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma_2}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge})) \end{aligned}$$

for cut-off functions $\omega_i = \omega_i(r_i) i = 1.2$.

In the latter definition we employ that the double $2\mathbb{B}$ belongs to \mathfrak{M}_0 . The spaces of Definition 1.7 are Hilbert with scalar products from the non-direct sum. In particular, we fix the scalar product of $\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})$ as a reference scalar product.

Note that $\kappa = {\kappa_{\delta}}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_+}$ defined by

(1.30)
$$(\kappa_{\delta}u)(r_k,\cdot) = \delta^{(b+1)/2}u(\delta r_k,\cdot)$$

turns $\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^w edge)$ to a Hilbert space with group action.

We have a non-degenerate sesquilinear pairing

(1.31)
$$(\cdot, \cdot)_{\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})} : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \times \mathcal{K}^{0,-\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathbb{C}$$

for any $\gamma = (\gamma_1, \gamma_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2$, and we have a natural inclusion

for any
$$\gamma = (\gamma_1, \gamma_2) \in \mathbb{R}$$
, and we have a natural inclusio

(1.32) $\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)) \subseteq \mathcal{K}^{0; \gamma_2, \gamma_2}(B^\wedge).$

This allows us to identify the space

(1.33)
$$\mathcal{S}^{-\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{-\infty, -\gamma_1}(B)) = \omega_2 \mathcal{H}^{-\infty, -\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{-\infty, -\gamma_1}(B))$$
$$+ (1 - \omega_2) \mathcal{S}'(\mathbb{R}, H^{-\infty, -\gamma_1}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_+}$$

with the anti-dual of

$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)).$$

In some considerations such as in the k = 2-analogue of Lemma 2.2 below, it makes sense to employ

(1.34)
$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_2;e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\gamma_1}(B)) &:= \omega_2 \mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\gamma_1}(B)) \\ &+ (1 - \omega r_2) r_2^{-e} H^s(\mathbb{R}, H^{s,\gamma}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_+} \end{aligned}$$

for any $s, e \in \mathbb{R}$. Then for $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$, dim B = b, where

(1.35)
$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)) = \varprojlim_{s, e \in \mathbb{R}} \mathcal{H}^{s, \gamma_2, e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s, \gamma_1}(B))$$

Theorem 1.8. For every $h(r_2, v_2, \eta_2) \in M^0_{\mathcal{O}_{v_2}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{r_2\eta_2}), \boldsymbol{g}_B := (\gamma_1, \gamma_1, (-(\vartheta_1 + 1), 0])$ the operator

$$\operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_2}}^{\gamma_2 - b/2}(h)(\eta_2) : \mathcal{K}^{0;\gamma_1,\gamma_2}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0;\gamma_1,\gamma_2}(B^{\wedge})$$

for $b := \dim B$ is continuous.

Proof. The claimed continuity can be reduced to a Calderón-Vaillancourt argument which is valid also for arbitrary orders k.

For every $\mu, \gamma_1, \gamma_2 \in \mathbb{R}$ we choose an element $f^{\mu}(r_2, v_2, \eta_2) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_2}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{r_2\eta_2})$ such that for any sufficiently large $|\iota|$ and $|\eta_2|$ the operators

(1.36)
$$r_2^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_2 - b/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta_2) : \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B)) \to \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2 - \mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta - \mu}(B))$$

as well as

(1.37)

$$r_2^{-\mu} \mathrm{Op}_M^{\gamma_2 - b/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta_2) : (\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1}(B))' \to (\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2 - \mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \gamma_1 - \mu}(B))'$$

are isomorphisms.

For the construction of f^{μ} we can proceed as follows. We consider the space of holomorphic Mellin symbols

(1.38)
$$M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{\nu_2}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{\tilde{\eta}_2})$$

with an extra parameter $\iota \in \mathbb{R}^w$. We obtain elements of the space (1.38) by kernel cut-off from the parameter-dependent space

(1.39)
$$L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota} \times \Gamma_{\lambda} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{\tilde{n}_2})$$

Then we can start with a parameter-dependent elliptic $\tilde{l}(\iota, \rho_2, r_2\eta_2), \rho_2 \in \Gamma_{\lambda}$ in (1.39) and pass via kernel cut-off, where ρ_2 turns to the complex variable v_2 to an element $f^{\mu}(r_2, \iota, v_2, \eta_2) := \tilde{f}^{\mu}(\iota, v_2, r_2\eta_2)$ in (1.38). For sufficiently large $|\iota|, |\eta_2|$ we can first prove the injectivity of

$$(r_2^{\mu} \mathrm{Op}_M^{\gamma_2 - \mu - b/2} ((f^{\mu})^{-1})(\eta_2)) r_2^{-\mu} \mathrm{Op}_M^{\gamma_2 - b/2} (f^{\mu})(\eta_2)$$

in $\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ which entails the injectivity on $\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\gamma_1}(B)))$ and then, via the sesquilinear pairing (1.31) the injectivity also on $(\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_2}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\gamma_1}(B)))'$.

Choose an $f^{-s}(r_2, v_2, \eta_2) \in M^{-s}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_2}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{r_2\eta_2})$ of this kind and denote the isomorphism (1.37) by

$$R^{-s} = r_2^s \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k + s - b_1/2}(f^{-s})(\eta_2).$$

For $\gamma = (\gamma_1, \gamma_2), s \in \mathbb{R}$ we define

(1.40)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) := R^{-s} \Big(\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) \Big),$$

endowed with the norm

$$\|u\|_{\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})} := \|v\|_{\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge})}$$

for $u = R^{-s}v$.

Theorem 1.9. For every $\mu \in \mathbb{R}, \gamma := (\beta, \gamma_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2$ there exists an element

(1.41)
$$f^{\mu}(r_2, v_2, \eta_2) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^q_{r_2\eta_2})$$

for $\boldsymbol{g}_B := (\gamma_1, \gamma_1 - \mu, (-(\vartheta_1 + 1), 0])$, such that for any $\eta_2 \neq 0$ the operator

(1.42)
$$r_2^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_2 - b_1/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta_2) : \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})$$

is an isomorphism for every $s \in \mathbb{R}$. Moreover, an operator (1.42) for any f^{μ} as in (1.41) is continuous for $\eta_2 \neq 0$.

Proof. First we write

$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}), \quad \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-(s-\mu)}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-(s-\mu)}(B^{\wedge}),$$

Then, denoting the operator (1.41) to be established by A we can consider $B := R^{s-\mu}AR^{-s} : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-(s-\mu)}(B^{\wedge})$. It suffices to construct any isomorphism $B : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-(s-\mu)}(B^{\wedge})$ in our operator class and then return to $A := R^{-(s-\mu)}BR^s$. Such a B can be easily found by the former methods, and then we find the desired A. Then we also obtain the second assertion.

1.4. Singular Functions and Discrete Asymptotics

For understanding the edge algebra it is essential to look at ideals of operators which are related to singular functions of asymptotics when we approach singularities. In this subsection we establish an approach which is easier than the one developed, e.g., [56]. We focus on constant discrete asymptotics. For brevity we do not consider continuous asymptotics. Let us first look at the traditional edge algebra on a manifold B with edge locally near $s_1(B)$ modeled on $\mathbb{R}^q \times X^{\Delta}$ for a compact $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$. Then a discrete asymptotic types associated with weight data (β, Θ) and dimension $n := \dim X$, for a weight $\beta \in \mathbb{R}$ and a weight interval $\Theta = (-(\vartheta + 1), 0]$ for a $\vartheta \in \mathbb{N} \cup \{\infty\}$ is defined as a sequence

(1.43)
$$\mathcal{P} := \{(p_j, m_j)\}_{j=1,\dots,N} \subset \mathbb{C} \times \mathbb{N}$$

such that $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{P} := \{p_j\}_{j=1,\dots,N}$ is finite if ϑ is finite, otherwise we assume $\operatorname{Re} p_j \to \infty$ for $j \to \infty$ and

$$\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{P} \subset \{v \in \mathbb{C} : (n+1)/2 - \beta + \vartheta < \operatorname{Re} v < (n+1)/2 - \beta\}.$$

The space of singular functions $\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge})$ over X^{\wedge} for a finite asymptotic type \mathcal{P} associated with the weight data (γ, Θ) is defined as the set

(1.44)
$$\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge}) := \{ \omega \sum_{j=0}^{N} \sum_{l=0}^{m_j} c_{jl} r^{-p_j} \log^l r : c_{jl} \in C^{\infty}(X) \},$$

where $\omega(r)$ is a cut-off function. Then we set $\mathcal{K}^{s,\beta}_{\Theta}(X^{\wedge}) := \varprojlim_{\varepsilon>0} \mathcal{K}^{s,\beta+\vartheta-\varepsilon}(X^{\wedge})$ and the non-direct sum

(1.45)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^\wedge) := \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}_{\Theta}(X^\wedge) + \mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^\wedge).$$

Globally on a manifold $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge Y and $\beta \in \mathbb{R}$ we set

(1.46)
$$H^{s,\gamma_1}_{\mathcal{P}}(B) := \omega_1 \mathcal{W}^s(Y, \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^\wedge)) + (1-\omega_1) H^s(2\mathbb{B}),$$

cf. also notation (1.26). In addition we set $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1;e}(X^{\wedge}) := [r]^{-e}\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge})$ for any $e \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1;e}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge}) := [r]^{-e}\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1;e}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge})$. An element C belongs to $L^{-\infty}(B, \mathbf{g}_B)$ for a manifold $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge and $\mathbf{g}_B := (\gamma_1, \gamma_1 - \mu, (0, -(\vartheta + 1]))$ if it induces continuous maps

$$C: H^{s,\gamma_1}(B) \to H^{\infty,\gamma_1-\mu}_{\mathcal{P}}(B), \quad C^*: H^{s,-\gamma_1+\mu}(B) \to H^{\infty,-\gamma_1}_{\mathcal{S}}(B)$$

for discrete asymptotic types \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{S} depending on C. We set $L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta}) := \mathcal{S}(\mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta}, L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B)).$

Definition 1.10. An element $g(y,\eta) \in S^{\mu}_{cl}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^q; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu}(X^{\wedge}))$ is called a Green symbol if

(1.47)
$$g(y,\eta) \in S^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^{q}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_{1};e}(X^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma_{1}-\mu;\infty}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge})),$$

(1.48)
$$g^*(y,\eta) \in S^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(\Omega \times \mathbb{R}^q; \mathcal{K}^{s,-\gamma_1+\mu;e}(X^\wedge), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,-\gamma_1;\infty}_{\mathcal{S}}(X^\wedge))$$

for all $s, e \in \mathbb{R}$, where " g^* " indicates the $\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(X^{\wedge})$ -adjoint of g, and \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{S} are asymptotic types depending on g.

The symbols of Definition 1.10 generate the class $L^{\mu}_{\mathcal{G}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d) \subset L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d)$ of Green operators of the edge calculus.

Let us now recall other subclasses of edge operators, namely, smoothing Mellin plus Green operators with constant discrete asymptotics. Let us first give a definition of asymptotic types for smoothing Mellin symbols. Such an asymptotic type is a sequence

$$\mathcal{R} := \{ (r_j, n_j) \}_{j \in \mathbb{J}} \subseteq \mathbb{C} \times \mathbb{N}$$

for an index set $\mathbb{J} \subseteq \mathbb{Z}$ such that $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R} := \{(r_j)\}_{j \in \mathbb{J}}$ intersects every strip $\{v \in \mathbb{C} : c \leq \operatorname{Re} v \leq c'\}$ for finite $c \leq c'$ in a finite set of points.

Definition 1.11. By $M_{\mathcal{R}}^{-\infty}(X)$ we denote the set of all

$$f \in \mathcal{A}(\mathbb{C} \setminus \pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}, L^{-\infty}(X))$$

such that for any $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}$ -excision function χ we have $\chi f \in L^{-\infty}(X;\Gamma_{\lambda})$ for every real λ , uniformly in compact λ -intervals and which are meromorphic with poles at the points of $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}$ of multiplicity $n_j + 1$ and Laurent coefficients of finite rank belonging to $L^{-\infty}(X)$.

Smoothing Mellin symbols associated with the weight interval $(-(\vartheta + 1), 0]$ for $\vartheta \in \mathbb{N}$ are of the form

(1.49)
$$m(y,\eta) := r^{-\mu}\omega_{1,\eta} \sum_{j=0}^{\vartheta} \sum_{|\alpha| \le j} r^j \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_{j\alpha}-n/2}(f_{j\alpha})(y) \eta^{\alpha} \omega'_{1,\eta}$$

for $\omega_{1,\eta}(r) = \omega_1(r[\eta])$ with ω_1 being a cut-off function in r, arbitrary

$$f_{j\alpha}(y,v) \in C^{\infty}(\Omega, M^{-\infty}_{\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha}}(X))$$

for Mellin asymptotic types $\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha}$ and weights

$$\gamma - j \leq \gamma_{j\alpha} \leq \gamma$$
 such that $\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha} \cap \Gamma_{(n+1)/2} - \gamma_{j\alpha} = \emptyset, n = \dim X.$

Applying ideas of [26], we can define singular functions also in another manner. It may be convenient to avoid cut-off functions in the definition of (1.44), or in higher order analogues. For instance, if we replace $\omega(r)$ by a function of the form $e^{-r^{2N}}$ for some $N \in \mathbb{N}, N \geq 1$, then we obtain a modified space $\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{P}}(X^{\wedge})$, where (1.45) remains the same, except that the resulting asymptotic type \mathcal{P} satisfies the shadow condition, i.e., $(p,m) \in \mathcal{P}$ entails $(p-j,m) \in \mathcal{P}$ for $j \in \mathbb{N}$ such that $\operatorname{Re}(p-j) > (n+1)/2 - \gamma + \vartheta$.

Similar constructions make sense over any $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ rather than $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ By $L^{\mu}_{M+G}(B, \mathbf{g}_B) \subset L^{\mu}(B, \mathbf{g}_B)$ we denote the space of all operators M + G generated by symbols $(m+g)(y_2, \eta_2)$ for analogues of m of analogues form as (1.49) and Green symbols g. In a similar manner we can introduce parameter-depending classes with parameter $\zeta \in \mathbb{R}^d$ by adding ζ as an extra covariable together with η . Details for arbitrary $B \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ for any $k \in \mathbb{N}$ are developed in Subsection 2.4 below. The smoothing Mellin symbols, say, for k = 2 of the class $M^{-\infty}_{\mathcal{R}}(B, \mathbf{g}_B) \ni f(v_2)$ are a counterpart of holomorphic Mellin symbols $h(r_2, v_2, \eta_2) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \mathbf{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^q_{r_2\eta_2})$. Any such Mellin symbol generates a sequence of conormal symbols. The leading one is $h_0(v_2) = h(0, v_2, 0)$ which is holomorphic as well.

1.5. Parameter-dependent Edge Calculus

In this subsection we summarize some constructions on parameter-dependent operators on a space $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ with edge $Y_1 := s_1(B)$ for dim $Y_1 = q_1 > 0$. Because of the higher corner calculus below from now on we write (y_1, η_1) rather than (y, η) and Θ_1 instead of Θ , etc.. We assume that B is locally near Y_1 modeled on $X^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1}$ for some compact $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$. These operators furnish a space

(1.50)
$$L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta}) \subseteq L^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(s_0(B); \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$$

for weight data $\boldsymbol{g} = (\gamma_1, \gamma_1 - \mu, \Theta_1)$ with weights $\gamma_1, \gamma_1 - \mu \in \mathbb{R}$ and a weight interval $\Theta_1 = (-(\vartheta_1 + 1), 0]$ for some $\vartheta_1 \in \mathbb{N}$. The elements of (1.50) consist of sums

(1.51)
$$A(\zeta) = H(\zeta) + M(\zeta) + G(\zeta) + A_{\text{int}}(\zeta) + C(\zeta)$$

where $H(\zeta)$ is locally near Y_1 of the form

(1.52)
$$H(\zeta) := \operatorname{Op}_{y_1} \{ \omega_1 r_1^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_1 - n/2}(h)(y_1, \eta_1, \zeta) \omega_1' \}$$

for $h(r_1, y_1, v_1, \eta_1, \zeta) := \tilde{h}(r_1, y_1, v_1, r_1 \tilde{\eta}_1, r_1 \tilde{\zeta})$ for

(1.53)
$$\tilde{h}(r_1, y_1, v_1, \tilde{\eta}_1, \tilde{\zeta}_1) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \Omega, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q_k+d}_{\tilde{\eta}_1, \tilde{\zeta}})),$$

cut-off functions $\omega_1(r_1) \prec \omega'_1(r_1), M + G \in L^{\mu}_{M+G}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$, and $A_{\text{int}} \in (1 - \omega_1)L^{\mu}_{\text{cl}}(s_0(B); \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})(1 - \omega''_1)$ for cut-off functions $\omega_1(r_1) \succ \omega''_1(r_1)$.

Let

$$\mu(y_1,\eta_1,\zeta) = \omega \operatorname{Op}_M^{\beta-n/2}(h)(y_1,\eta_1,\zeta)\omega$$

where the operators of multiplication by $\omega = \omega(r_1), \, \omega' = \omega'(r_1)$ belong to the interpretation of $a(y_1, \eta_1, \zeta)$ as operator-valued symbol

(1.54)
$$a(y_1,\eta_1,\zeta) \in S^{\mu}(\Omega_1 \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1+d}_{\eta_1,\zeta}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma_1-\mu}(X^{\wedge})).$$

Moreveocer, $C(\zeta) \in L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$. The full amplitude functions $(a + m + g)(y_1, \eta_1, \zeta)$ of elements $(A + M + G + C)(\zeta) \in L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{\zeta})$ furnish a subspace of $S^{\mu}(\Omega_1 \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1+d}_{\eta_1,\zeta_1}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_1}(X^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\beta-\mu}(X^{\wedge}))$ that we denote by

(1.55)
$$R^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_1} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1+d}, \boldsymbol{g}_B).$$

2. The Higher Iterative Calculus

2.1. Mellin Operators of Arbitrary Order

We now formulate an iterative process of generating higher corner operators. The operators on $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ locally near $Y_k := s_k(M)$ modeled on $B_{k-1}^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}$, for some $B := B_{k-1} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ of dimension b and $q_k = \dim Y_k$, have the form

$$(2.1) A = H + M + G + A_{\text{int}} + C$$

belonging to a space

(2.2)
$$L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g}) \subseteq L^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(s_0(M))$$

for a tuple of weight data $\boldsymbol{g} := (\boldsymbol{g}_i)_{i=1,\dots,k}, \, \boldsymbol{g}_i = (\gamma_i, \gamma_i - \mu, \Theta_i), \, \Theta_i := (-(\vartheta_i + 1), 0], \, \vartheta_i \in \mathbb{N}$, where H is locally near $s_k(M)$ under the assumption dim $s_k(M) > 0$ of the form

(2.3)
$$H := \operatorname{Op}_{y_k} \{ \omega_k r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_k}}^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(y_k, \eta_k) \omega'_k \}$$

for $h(r_k, y_k, v_k, \eta_k) := \tilde{h}(r_k, y_k, v_k, r_k \eta_k)$

(2.4)
$$\tilde{h}(r_k, y_k, v_k, \tilde{\eta}_k) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{\tilde{\eta}_k})),$$

for $\boldsymbol{g}_B := (\boldsymbol{g}_i)_{i=1,\dots,k-1}$, and cut-off functions $\omega_k = \omega_k(r_k), \omega'_k = \omega'_k(r_k)$ with $\omega_k \prec \omega'_k$. The space $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \tilde{\eta}_k)$ is defined as the set of all

$$\tilde{h}(v_k, \tilde{\eta}_k) \in \mathcal{A}(\mathbb{C}_{v_k}, L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{\tilde{\eta}_k})),$$

such that

$$\hat{h}(\lambda + i\rho, \tilde{\eta}_k) \in L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \Gamma_{\lambda} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{\tilde{n}_k})$$

for every real λ , uniformly in compact λ -intervals. Here, $v_k = \lambda + i\rho$ and $(\lambda, \tilde{\eta}) \in \mathbb{R}^{1+q_k}$ is the parameter in the edge operator class over B with "sleeping" parameters that are contained in the symbol classes which are of nature as extra edge covariables, cf. the parameter ζ in (1.50).

Moreover, we define $M + G \in L^{\mu}_{M+G}(M, \boldsymbol{g})$ in a separate step, and employ $A_{\text{int}} \in (1-\omega)L^{\mu}(M \setminus s_k(M), \boldsymbol{g}_B)(1-\omega'')$ for cut-off functions $\omega(r) \succ \omega''(r)$, known from the iterative steps before.

Because of relation (2.2) the operators $A \in L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g})$ have a standard homogeneous principal symbol $\sigma_0(A)$. Moreover, we define

(2.5)
$$\sigma_k(A)(y_k,\eta_k) := \sigma_k(H)(y_k,\eta_k) + \sigma_k(M+G)(y_k,\eta_k)$$

The second term on the right-hand side is defined in Subsection 2.4 below. Concerning ${\cal H}$ we set

(2.6)
$$\sigma_k(H)(y_k,\eta_k) := r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_k}}^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h_0)(y_k,\eta_k)$$

for $\eta_k \neq 0$,

$$h_0(r_k, y_k, v_k, \eta_k) := h(0, y_k, v_k, r_k \eta_k)$$

We shall see below that $\sigma_k(A)(y_k, \eta_k)$ defines a family of continuous operators

(2.7)
$$\sigma_k(A)(y_k,\eta_k) := \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})$$

for every $s \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\gamma = (\beta, \gamma_k)$ for $\beta := (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_{k-1})$. Since operators $A \in L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g})$ belong at the same time to a similar operator space over $M \setminus s_k(M) \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$, the definition (2.6) of symbols can be iterated, which gives us first $\sigma_{k-1}(A)(y_{k-1}, \eta_{k-1})$: $\mathcal{K}^{s,\beta}(C^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\beta-\mu}(C^{\wedge})$ where B locally near $s_{k-1}(B)$ modeled on $C^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}}$ for a $C \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2}, \eta_{k-1} \neq 0$, etc., up to $\sigma_0(A)(y_0, \eta_0)$, mentioned before.

Definition 2.1. By $R^{\mu}(\Omega_k \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g})$ we denote the set of all operator families

(2.8)
$$a(y_k, \eta_k) := \omega_k r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_k}}^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(y_k, \eta_k) \omega'_k + (m+g)(y_k, \eta_k)$$

for arbitrary cut-off functions $\omega_k := \omega_k(r_k), \, \omega'_k := omega'_k(r_k)$, and

$$h(r_k, y_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \Omega_k, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_m}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k}))$$

The elements of $R^{\mu}(\Omega_k \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g})$ are local amplitude functions for the calculus of operators $A \in L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g})$ close to $s_k(M)$, up to the interior contributions A_{int} . Similarly we have local amplitude functions close to every $s_j(M)$, up to the interior contributions, for every 0 < j < k. Writing

symb
$$L^{\mu}(M, g) := \{ \sigma(A) = (\sigma_j(A))_{j=0,\dots,k} : A \in L^{\mu}(M, g) \}$$

we have a principal symbolic map $A \mapsto \sigma(A)$, namely,

$$\sigma: L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g}) \to \operatorname{symb}(L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g}).$$

We form the spaces

(2.9)
$$H^{s,\beta}(B) := \omega_{k-1} \mathcal{W}^s(Y_{k-1}, \mathcal{K}^{s,\beta}(C^{\Delta})) + (1 - \omega_{k-1})) H^{s,\delta}(2\mathbb{B})$$

for $\delta := (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_{k-2})$ and a cut-off function ω_{k-1} in r_{k-1} .

Using the space $H^{\infty,\beta}(B) = \bigcap_{s \in \mathbb{R}} H^{s,\beta}(B)$ for compact $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ and any weight tuple $\beta = (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_{k-1})$ we set

 $\mathcal{S}^{\gamma'_{k}}(\mathbb{R}_{+}, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)) := \omega_{k}\mathcal{H}^{\infty,\gamma_{k}}(\mathbb{R}_{+}, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)) + (1-\omega_{k})\mathcal{S}(\mathbb{R}, H^{\infty,\beta}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_{+}},$

where ω_k is a cut-off function on the r_k half-axis. Since the Kegel spaces involved in (2.7) are studied later on instead of (2.7) we interpret the symbol $\sigma_k(A)$ according to

Lemma 2.2. The symbol $\sigma_k(A)(y_k, \eta_k)$ induces a family of continuous maps

(2.11)
$$\sigma_k(A)(y_k,\eta_k) := \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)) \to \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k-\mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta-\mu}(B)).$$

Proof. We focus on the Mellin part of A. The M plus G part is simple and left to the reader. Let $Mu(r) := r^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma}(f)$, first for a Mellin symbol $f(v) \in M_{\mathcal{O}}^{\mu}(H, \widetilde{H})$ with constant coefficients in r, taking values in a $\mathcal{L}(H, \widetilde{H})$ for Hilbert spaces H, \widetilde{H} . We show that

$$M: \mathcal{S}^{\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_+, H) \to \mathcal{S}^{\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_+, H)$$

is continuous. Here

$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_{+},H) := \omega(r)\mathcal{H}^{\infty,\gamma}(\mathbb{R}_{+},H) + (1-\omega(r))\mathcal{S}(\mathbb{R},H)|_{\mathbb{R}_{+}}$$

for some cut-off function ω . Let us write $M = (\omega + (1 - \omega))M(\tilde{\omega} + (1 - \tilde{\omega}))$. Then the desired mapping property for $\omega M \tilde{\omega}$ and $\omega M(1 - \tilde{\omega})$ is certainly true. For $(1 - \omega)M\tilde{\omega}$ and $(1 - \omega)M(1 - \tilde{\omega})$ we may argue in terms of commutation relations, e.g., $(1 - \omega)M\tilde{\omega}r^{-N} = r^{-N}(1 - \omega)M_N\tilde{\omega}$ for any $N \in \mathbb{N}$ and a Mellin operator M_N with a translated Mellin symbol. For derivaties in r we combine commutation relations with $r\partial r$ with powers of r treated before. Similar arguments hold when we replace H, \tilde{H} by projective limits of Hilbert spaces.

In order to understand more on the iterative structure of edge symbols we consider as an example an edge-degenerate differential operator

(2.12)
$$A = r_2^{-\mu} \sum_{j_2 + |\alpha_2| \le \mu} a_{j_2,\alpha_2} (-r_2 \partial_{r_2})^{j_2} (r_2 D_{y_2})^{\alpha_2}$$

for coefficients $a_{j_2,\alpha_2}(r_2,y_2) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2}, \operatorname{Diff}_{\operatorname{deg}}^{\mu-(j_2+|\alpha_2|)}(B))$ for a $B \in \mathfrak{M}_1$ locally close to $s_1(B)$ modeled on $X^{\scriptscriptstyle \Delta} \times \Omega_1$ for an $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ and insert once again

(2.13)
$$a_{j_2,\alpha_2} = r_1^{-\mu + (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} \sum_{j_1 + |\alpha_1| \le \mu - (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} b_{j_1,\alpha_1} (-r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 D_{y_1})^{\alpha_1}$$

for coefficients $b_{j_1,\alpha_1}(r_1, y_1) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1}, \mathrm{Diff}^{\mu-(j_1+|\alpha_1|)}(X))$. Then we obtain a corner differential operator

(2.14)

$$A = r_2^{-\mu} r_1^{-\mu + (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} \sum_{j_2 + |\alpha_2| \le \mu} \sum_{j_1 + |\alpha_1| \le \mu - (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} b_{j_1,\alpha_1} (-r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 D_{y_1})^{\alpha_1} (-r_2 \partial_{r_2})^{j_2} (r_2 D_{y_2})^{\alpha_2}$$

which is the same as

$$(2.15) \quad A = r_2^{-\mu} r_1^{-\mu} \sum_{j_2 + |\alpha_2| \le \mu} \sum_{j_1 + |\alpha_1| \le \mu - (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} b_{j_1,\alpha_1} (-r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 D_{y_1})^{\alpha_1} (-r_1 r_2 \partial_{r_2})^{j_2} (r_1 r_2 D_{y_2})^{\alpha_2}.$$

Off $r_2 = 0$ the operator C is edge-degenerate for the edge $\Omega_1 \times \mathbb{R}_{+,r_2} \times \Omega_2$ and has as such an edge symbol

(2.16)
$$\sigma_1(A)(y_1, r_2, y_2, \eta_1, \rho_2, \eta_2) = r_1^{-\mu} \sum_{j_2 + |\alpha_2| \le \mu} \sum_{j_1 + |\alpha_1| \le \mu - (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} r_2^{-\mu} b_{j_1, \alpha_1} \\ (-r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 \eta_1)^{\alpha_1} (r_1 r_2 i \rho_2)^{j_2} (r_1 r_2 \eta_2)^{\alpha_2}.$$

In order to avoid confusion compared with notation in (1.3) the role of y_1 now plays the tuple of variables (y_1, r_2, y_2) and of η_1 the covariables (η_1, ρ_2, η_2) which are multiplied by r_1 as it ought to be because of the edge-degenerate behaviour in r_1 . However, close to $r_2 = 0$ the operator A is corner-degenerate, and

(2.17)
$$\sigma_2(A)(y_2,\eta_2) = r_2^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_2}}^{\gamma_2 - b/2}(h_0)(y_2,\eta_2)$$

for

(2.18)

$$h_0(y_2, v_2, \eta_2) = \tilde{h}(0, y_2, v_2, r_2\eta_2) = \sum_{j_2 + |\alpha_2| \le \mu} \sum_{j_1 + |\alpha_1| \le \mu - (j_2 + |\alpha_2|)} b_{j_1, \alpha_1}|_{r_2 = 0}$$

$$r_1^{-\mu} (-r_1 \partial_{r_1})^{j_1} (r_1 D_{y_1})^{\alpha_1} (r_1 v_2)^{j_2} (r_1 r_2 \eta_2)^{\alpha_2},$$

i.e., $\sigma_2(A)(y_2, \eta_2)$ is described by a Mellin symbol in $C^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^{q_2}, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_2}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{r_2\eta_2})).$

2.2. Compositions

Theorem 2.3. Let $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$, dim $s_k(M) > 0$. Then $P \in L^{\mu}(M, p)$ for $p = (\gamma_i - \nu, \gamma_i - (\mu + \nu), \Theta_i)_{i=1,...,k}$ and $Q \in L^{\nu}(M, q)$ for $q = (\gamma_i, \gamma_i - \nu, \Theta_i)_{i=1,...,k}$ implies $PQ \in L^{\mu+\nu}(M, p \circ q)$ (when one of the factors is properly supported, in obvious meaning) and

(2.19)
$$\sigma_j(PQ) = \sigma_j(P)\sigma_j(Q), \quad j = 1, \dots, k.$$

Proof. Similarly as (2.1) we have

$$P = H + M + G + A_{\text{int}} + C, \quad Q = F + N + L + B_{\text{int}} + D$$

with obvious notation. Let us first show that HF is of the form

(2.20)
$$\operatorname{Op}_{y_k} \{ \omega_k r_k^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(l)(y_k, \eta_k) \omega'_k + (m+g)(y_k, \eta_k) \}$$
for cut-off functions $\omega_k(r_k), \omega'_k(r_k)$, a Mellin symbol

(2.21)
$$l(r_k, y_k, v_k, r_k \eta_k) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, M_{\mathcal{O}}^{\mu+\nu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})),$$

and $(m+g)(y_k,\eta_k) \in R_{M+G}^{\mu+\nu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta})$. Writing

$$P := \operatorname{Op}_{y_k} \{ \sigma_k r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - \nu - b/2}(h)(y_k, \eta_k) \sigma'_k \}$$

and

$$Q := \operatorname{Op}_{y_k} \{ \tilde{\omega}_k r_k^{-\nu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(m)(y_k, \eta_k) \tilde{\omega}'_k \}$$

we have

$$(2.22)$$

$$PQ = \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \omega_{k} r_{k}^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-\nu-b/2}(h)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\omega_{k}' \} \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \tilde{\omega}_{k} r_{k}^{-\nu} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(m)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\tilde{\omega}_{k}' \}$$

$$= \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \omega_{k} r_{k}^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(T^{-\nu}h)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\omega_{k}' \} \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \tilde{\omega}_{k} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(m)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\tilde{\omega}_{k}' \}$$

$$= \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \omega_{k} r_{k}^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(T^{-\nu}h)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\omega_{k}' \} \# \{ \tilde{\omega}_{k} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(m)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\tilde{\omega}_{k}' \}$$

$$= \operatorname{Op}_{y_{k}} \{ \omega_{k} r_{k}^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(T^{-\nu}h)(y_{k},\eta_{k}) \} \# \{ \operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-b/2}(m)(y_{k},\eta_{k})\tilde{\omega}_{k}' \} + G$$

for

(2.23)
$$G = \operatorname{Op}_{y_k} \{ \omega_k r_k^{-(\mu+\nu)} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2} (T^{-\nu} h) (y_k, \eta_k) (\omega'_k \tilde{\omega}_{k-1} \} \\ \# \{ \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2} (m) (y_k, \eta_k) \tilde{\omega}'_k \}.$$

The computation of the Fourier-Mellin Leibniz product on the right-hand side of (2.22) applies the rules of oscillatory integrals, using the Mellin-modified version with operator-valued symbols and twisted symbolic estimates, similarly as methods in Seiler [66]. The convergence of the Mellin oscillatory part employs the fact that after finitely often differentiating amplitude functions in r_k or v_k we obtain a decay which implies convergence of integrals over $\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R} \ni (r_k, \operatorname{Im} v_k)$ when we apply any semi-norm of the involved operator algebras. This ensures the shape of (2.21), including the combination of variables in the form $r_k\eta_k$, the specific arguments for holomorphic dependence of (2.21) on $v_k \in \mathbb{C}$ and the required shape of remainder terms. The Fourier part of oscillatory integrals can be treated in an analogous manner. The expression (2.23) belongs to $L_{\mathrm{G}}^{\mu+\nu}(M, \mathbf{p} \circ \mathbf{q})$, according to the rules of treating Mellin operator compositions with holomorphic symbols and a factor $\omega - 1$ in the middle, for some cut-off function ω . What concerns the M+G-contributions we employ that those form an ideal. The same is true when compositions contain an "int"-factor which preserves "int" when the other factor in P or Q is of that kind, or of Mellin plus Green nature when the other factor belongs to the M+G operator class.

What concerns the composition rule for symbols the only new aspect compared with singularity order $\langle k \rangle$ is relation (2.19) for j = k. This follows from limit expressions of the kind

$$\sigma_j(P)(y_k,\eta_k) = \delta^{-\nu} \lim_{\delta \to \infty} \kappa_{\delta}^{-1} p(y_k,\delta\eta_k) \kappa_{\delta}$$

when we represent, for instance, the operator P locally near $s_k(M)$ by an amplitude function $p(y_k, \eta_k) \in R^{\nu}(\Omega_k \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g})$, cf. Definition 2.1.

20

2.3. Higher Kegel and Wedge Spaces

Recall that notation of weights will be employed as follows. We define weighted spaces of smoothness $s \in \mathbb{R}$ and weight $\gamma := (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_k)$ for any $k \ge 2$ and we define

$$\gamma - \mu := (\gamma_1 - \mu, \dots, \gamma_k - \mu)$$

for any $\mu \in \mathbb{R}$. In order to have simple references to constructions for smaller singularity orders, we set

$$\beta := (\gamma_1, \dots, \gamma_{k-1}), \, \delta := (\gamma_1, \dots, \gamma_{k-2})$$

and also $\gamma = (\beta, \gamma_k)$. Kegel spaces are the framework for expressing operatorvalued symbols of operators A on $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$. In fact, the construction of our higher corner operators A refers to local representations of M close to every $y_j \in s_j(M)$ as

$$(2.24) B_{j-1}^{\Delta} \times \Omega_j$$

for some $B_{j-1} \in \mathfrak{M}_{j-1}$, $j = 1, \ldots, k$, successively yields the principal symbolic hierarchy

$$(\sigma_j(A)(y_j,\eta_j))_{j=1,\ldots,k},$$

together with the standard homogeneous principal symbol $\sigma_0(A)$ on $s_0(M)$. Then $\sigma_j(A)(y_j, \eta_j)$ is a family of operators between weighted Kegel spaces

$$\sigma_j(A)(y_j,\eta_j)): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_{(j)}}(B^{\wedge}_{j-1}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma_{(j)}-\mu}(B^{\wedge}_{j-1})$$

for $(y_j, \eta_j) \in \mathbb{R}^{q_j} \times (\mathbb{R}^{q_j} \setminus \{0\})$ all $s \in \mathbb{R}$ and weight tuples $\gamma_{(j)} = (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_j) \in \mathbb{R}^j$, where $\gamma_{(j)} - \mu = (\gamma_1 - \mu, \ldots, \gamma_j - \mu)$. In this section we introduce and study these higher Kegel spaces. By virtue of the iterative approach we may assume that the cases for j < k are treated. Thus we may focus on the case j = k, and we set $B := X_{k-1}$, assuming that B is locally near $s_{k-1}(B) = Y_{k-1}$ identified with $C^{\Delta} \times Y_{k-1}$ for some $C \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2}$. We use the fact that $2\mathbb{B} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2}$.

Definition 2.4. For compact $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ with edge Y_{k-1} , locally near Y_{k-1} modeled on $C^{\Delta} \times Y_{k-1}$ for a $C \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2}$, $C^{\wedge} = \mathbb{R}_{+,r_{k-1}} \times C$, and for weights $\gamma := (\beta, \gamma_k)$ we define

(2.25)

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) &:= \omega_k \omega_{k-1} \mathcal{H}^{0,\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y_{k-1}, \mathcal{K}^{0,\beta}(C^{\wedge})) \\ &+ (1 - \omega_k) \omega_{k-1} \mathcal{H}^{0,0}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y_{k-1}, \mathcal{K}^{0,\beta}(C^{\wedge})) \\ &+ (1 - \omega_k)(1 - \omega_{k-1}) \mathcal{K}^{0;\delta,0}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge})) + \omega_k (1 - \omega_{k-1}) \mathcal{K}^{0;\delta,\gamma_k}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge})) \end{aligned}$$

for cut-off functions $\omega_k = \omega_k(r_k), \ \omega_{k-1} = \omega_{k-1}(r_{k-1}).$

In Definition 2.4 we employ that the double $2\mathbb{B}$ belongs to \mathfrak{M}_{k-2} . The spaces in (2.25) are Hilbert spaces and $\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ is endowed with the scalar product of the non-direct sum. In particular, we fix the scalar product of $\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})$ as a reference scalar product where the second zero has the meaning of multiple weights

(2.26)
$$0 := (0, \dots, 0), (k \text{ times}).$$

We have a non-degenerate sesquilinear pairing

$$(\cdot,\cdot)_{\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})}:\mathcal{K}^{0;\gamma}(B^{\wedge})\times\mathcal{K}^{0;-\gamma}(B^{\wedge})\to\mathbb{C}$$

for any $\gamma = (\beta, \gamma_k) \in \mathbb{R}^k$, and we have a natural inclusion

(2.27)
$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)) \subseteq \mathcal{K}^{0;\beta,\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge}).$$

This allows us to identify the space

(2.28)
$$(\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)))' = \omega_k \mathcal{H}^{-\infty, -\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{-\infty, -\beta}(B)) + (1 - \omega_k) \mathcal{S}'(\mathbb{R}, H^{-\infty, -\beta}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_+}$$

with the anti-dual of $\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta}(B))$.

We can also form spaces

(2.29)
$$\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_k;e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\beta}(B)) := \omega_k \mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\beta}(B)) + (1-\omega_k)r_k^{-e}H^s(\mathbb{R}, H^{s,\beta}(B))|_{\mathbb{R}_+}$$

for any $s, e \in \mathbb{R}$. Then for $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$, dim B = b, we have

(2.30)
$$\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty,\beta}(B)) = \lim_{s,e \in \mathbb{R}} \mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_k;e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\beta}(B))$$

and

$$\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_k;e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\beta}(B)) \subseteq \mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^\wedge)$$

for $s, e \geq 0, \beta, \gamma_k \geq 0$, where $\mathcal{H}^{s,\gamma_k;e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{s,\beta}(B))$ can be identified with the antidual of $\mathcal{H}^{-s,-\gamma_k;-e}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{-s,-\beta}(B))$ with respect to the $\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})$ -scalar product and vice versa.

Theorem 2.5. For every

$$h(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^0_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$$

for $\boldsymbol{g}_B := (\gamma_j, \gamma_j, (-(\vartheta_j + 1), 0])_{j=1,...,k-1}$ the operator (2.31) $\operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_k}}^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(\eta_k) : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$

is continuous.

The proof will be given below.

Theorem 2.6. Let $h(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{r_k \eta_k}), \boldsymbol{g}_B := (\gamma_i, \gamma_i - \mu, \Theta_i)_{i=1,...,k-1};$ then

(2.32)
$$r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_k}}^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(\eta_k) : \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta}(B)) \to \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k - \mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta - \mu}(B))$$

is continuous for every $\beta \in \mathbb{R}^{k-1}$, $\gamma_k \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\eta_k \neq 0$.

Proof. The proof follows the lines of Lemma 2.2.

For every $\mu \in \mathbb{R}$, $\gamma \in \mathbb{R}^k$ and $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ of dimension b we choose an element $f^{\mu}(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k}), \gamma = (\beta, \gamma_k)$, such that the operators

$$(2.33) \quad r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta_k) : \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta}(B)) \to \mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k - \mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta - \mu}(B)))$$
as well as

(2.34)

$$r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(f^{\mu})(\eta_k) : (\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta}(B))' \to (\mathcal{S}^{\gamma_k - \mu}(\mathbb{R}_+, H^{\infty, \beta - \mu}(B)))'$$

are isomorphisms for any $\eta_k \neq 0$.

Remark 2.7. The element $f^{\mu}(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta}; \mathbb{R}^w_{\iota_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$ can be chosen in such a way that isomorphisms (2.33) and (2.34) are induced for all $c \leq \gamma_i \leq c'$ for arbitrary fixed $c \leq c'$. This only requires that the additional parameters $\iota_k \in \mathbb{R}^w$ at every level of singularity are of sufficiently large absolute value. Therefore, if we have some fixed tuples of weights in mind, we can arrange the corresponding isomorphisms for all γ_i and $-\gamma_i$ for $i = 1, \ldots, k$ at the same time, using, if necesary, translations and dilations in the complex variables v_j for all j.

Definition 2.8. Let $s, \gamma_k \in \mathbb{R}, \beta \in \mathbb{R}^{k-1}$, and let $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ be of dimension b. Choose an $f^{-s}(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^{-s}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$ and denote the above-mentioned isomorphism (2.33) or (2.34) by

$$R^{-s} := r_k^s \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k + s - b/2}(f^{-s})(\eta_k),$$

 $\eta_k \neq 0$. We define

(2.35)
$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) := \mathcal{K}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge}) := R^{-s} \Big(\mathcal{K}^{0;\beta-s,\gamma_k-s}(B^{\wedge}) \Big),$$

for $\gamma := (\beta, \gamma_k), \beta := (\gamma_1, \dots, \gamma_{k-1}).$

Definition 2.9. Let H and \widetilde{H} be Hilbert spaces with group action κ and $\widetilde{\kappa}$, respectively. By $S^0(\mathbb{R}^q \times \mathbb{R}^q; H, \widetilde{H})_{cv}$ we denote the set of all $a(y, \eta) \in C^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^{2q}, \mathcal{L}(H, \widetilde{H}))$ such that (2.36)

$$\stackrel{'}{\pi(a)} := \sup \{ \| \{ \tilde{\kappa}_{\langle \eta \rangle}^{-1} \{ D_y^{\alpha} D_{\eta}^{\beta} a(y,\eta) \} \kappa_{\langle \eta \rangle} \|_{\mathcal{L}(H,\widetilde{H})} : (y,\eta) \in \mathbb{R}^{2q}, \alpha \le \alpha, \beta \le \beta \}$$

is finite for $\boldsymbol{\alpha} := (M + 1, \dots, M + 1), \ \boldsymbol{\beta} := (1, \dots, 1)$, with $M \in \mathbb{N}$ being a constant belonging to the norm growth of $\tilde{\kappa}$ in $\mathcal{L}(\tilde{H})$. Moreover, let $S^0(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^q \times \Gamma_{(b+1)/2-\nu} \times \mathbb{R}^q; H, \tilde{H})_{\text{CV}}$ denote the set of all $f(r, y, (b+1)/2 - \nu + i\rho) \in C^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^q \times \Gamma_{(b+1)/2-\nu} \times \mathbb{R}^q, \mathcal{L}(H, \tilde{H}))$ such that

$$(2.37) \ a(t,y,\rho,\eta) := f(e^{-t},y,(b+1)/2 - \nu + i\rho,\eta) \in S^0(\mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}^q \times \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}^q; H, \widetilde{H})_{cv}.$$

Theorem 2.10. Let H and \widetilde{H} be Hilbert spaces with group action κ and $\widetilde{\kappa}$, respectively, and let $f(r, y, (b+1)/2 - \nu + i\rho, \eta) \in S^0(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^q \times \Gamma_{(b+1)/2 - \nu} \times \mathbb{R}^q; H, \widetilde{H})_{CV}$. Then $\operatorname{Op}_u \operatorname{Op}_M^{\nu - b/2}(f)$ induces a continuous operator

$$\operatorname{Op}_{y}\operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\nu-b/2}(f): \mathcal{H}^{0,\nu}(\mathbb{R}_{+}\times\mathbb{R}^{q},H) \to \mathcal{H}^{0,\nu}(\mathbb{R}_{+}\times\mathbb{R}^{q},\widetilde{H}),$$

and we have $\|\operatorname{Op}_{y}\operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\nu-b/2}(f)\|_{\mathcal{L}(\mathcal{H}^{0,\nu}(\mathbb{R}_{+}\times\mathbb{R}^{q},H),\mathcal{H}^{0,\nu}(\mathbb{R}_{+}\times\mathbb{R}^{q},\widetilde{H}))} \leq c\pi(f)$ for a constant c > 0 independent of f.

Proof. The proof follows the lines of Seiler, [64].

Proof of Theorem 2.5. The proof is a consequence of iteratively applying Theorem 2.10. By virtue of Definition 2.4 we can write

$$\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) = \mathbb{H}_k + \mathbb{L}_k$$

for cut-off functions $\omega_k := \omega_k(r_k), \ \omega_{k-1} := \omega_{k-1}(r_{k-1}),$

 $\mathbb{H}_k := \omega_k \omega_{k-1} \mathcal{H}^{0,\gamma_k}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y_{k-1}, \mathcal{K}^{0,\beta}(C^{\wedge})) + (1-\omega_k)\omega_{k-1} \mathcal{H}^{0,0}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times Y_{k-1}, \mathcal{K}^{0,\beta}(C^{\wedge}))$ and

$$\mathbb{L}_k := (1 - \omega_k)(1 - \omega_{k-1})\mathcal{K}^{0;\delta,0}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge})) + \omega_k(1 - \omega_{k-1})\mathcal{K}^{0;\delta,\gamma_k}((2\mathbb{B})^{\wedge}))$$

The claimed continuity in spaces \mathbb{H}_k follows from Theorem 2.10 by applying charts on Y_{k-1} to $\mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}}$ and a subsequent partition of unity. The spaces contained in \mathbb{L}_k are of smaller singularity order and the continuity holds because of the iteration step before.

Corollary 2.11. The spaces $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ are independent of the choice of R^{-s} in Definition 2.8.

In fact, let \tilde{R}^{-s} be an another order reducing isomorphism of analogous kind as R^{-s} and denote the resulting space by $\tilde{\mathcal{K}}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$. Then

$$R^s \tilde{\mathcal{K}}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) = R^s \tilde{R}^{-s} \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) = \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge})$$

since by Theorem 2.5 the operator $R^s \tilde{R}^{-s} : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge})$ is an isomorphism. Thus $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) = \tilde{\mathcal{K}}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$.

Remark 2.12. The operators

(2.38)
$$A := r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(f)(\eta_k) : \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s - \mu, \gamma - \mu}(B^{\wedge})$$

for any $f(r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$ are continuous for all $s \in \mathbb{R}$. Moreover, we have natural inclusions $\mathcal{K}^{s',\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \hookrightarrow \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ for $s' \geq 0$, since

$$M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta}; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k}) \subseteq M^{\mu'}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$$

for $\mu' \ge \mu, \mathbf{g}'_B = (\gamma_j, \gamma_j - \mu', \Theta_j)$. Then (2.38) can be applied for $\mu \le 0, \ \mu' = 0$.

The continuity (2.38) for s = 0, $\mu = 0$ is stated in Theorem 2.5. That means $A = (R^{-s})^{-1}AR^{-s} : \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ has the form $\operatorname{Op}_{M}^{\gamma_{k}-s-b/2}(f_{0})(\eta_{k})$ for some $f_{0}(r_{k}, v_{k}, \eta_{k}) \in M_{\mathcal{O}_{v_{k}}}^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{B}; \mathbb{R}^{q_{k}}_{r_{k}\eta_{k}})$ is continuous. Therefore, using Definition 2.8 we obtain the asserted continuity of A, cf. relations (1.17), (1.18) which are valid for arbitrary k.

For any $e \in \mathbb{R}$ we set

$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) := [r_k]^{-e} \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$$

24

or, equivalently,

(2.39)

$$\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) = r_k^{-e} \mathcal{K}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k+e}(B^{\wedge}).$$

Remark 2.13. We have

 $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s;e}(B^{\wedge}).$

In fact, since Definition 2.8 is valid for R^{-s} and all weights γ varying in finite weight strips of prescribed finite widths we can form $R^{-s}(r_k^{-e}\mathcal{K}^{0;\beta,\gamma_k+e}(B^{\wedge})) = r_k^{-e}\tilde{R}^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{0;\beta,\gamma_k+e}(B^{\wedge})$ where \tilde{R}^{-s} is order reducing with a shifted Mellin symbol, cf. analogously Theorem 1.3 (iv). Thus it suffices to apply Corollary 2.11.

Theorem 2.14. For every $s' \ge s$, $\gamma' \ge \gamma$ (component wise) and $e' \ge e$ we have a continuous embedding

(2.40)
$$\iota_s: \mathcal{K}^{s',\gamma';e'}(B^{\wedge}) \hookrightarrow \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}),$$

and (2.40) is compact for s' > s, $\gamma' > \gamma$, e' > e.

Proof. We have

$$\mathcal{K}^{s',\gamma';e'}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s'}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma'-s';e'}(B^{\wedge}), \quad \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s;e}(B^{\wedge})$$

and thus

$$\mathcal{K}^{s',\gamma';e'}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}(R^s R^{-s'})\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma'-s';e'}(B^{\wedge}) = R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{-(s-s'),\gamma'-s'-(s-s');e'}(B^{\wedge})$$

Because of the continuous/compact embedding

$$\iota_0: \mathcal{K}^{-(s-s'),\gamma'-s;e'}(B^{\wedge}) \hookrightarrow \mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s;e}(B^{\wedge})$$

it follows that

$$\iota_s: R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{-(s-s'),\gamma'-s;e'}(B^\wedge) \hookrightarrow R^{-s}\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s\,;e}(B^\wedge)$$

is continuous/compact, as claimed. Note that in the latter conclusion we inductively employed continuous/compact embeddings $H^{s',\beta'}(B) \hookrightarrow H^{s,\beta}(B)$ for $s' \ge s, \gamma' \ge \gamma$ and $s' > s, \beta' > \beta$, respectively.

The spaces $\mathcal{K}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge})$ are Hilbert spaces with group action $\kappa = \{\kappa_{\delta}\}_{\delta \in \mathbb{R}_+}$ for (1.30), since κ acts on $\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge})$, and the shape of R^{-s} shows how κ acts on $\mathcal{K}^{0,\gamma-s}(B^{\wedge})$. We can define associated wedge spaces

$$\mathcal{W}^{s}(\mathbb{R}^{q_{k}},\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})))$$

and according to (2.9) establish analysis on the next singularity level, e.g., form spaces $H^{s,\gamma}(M)$ for any $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$, near $s_k(M)$ modeled on $B^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}$ for $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$.

Theorem 2.15. An operator $A \in L^{\mu}(M, g)$ for $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ induces continuous operators

(2.41)
$$A: H^{s,\gamma}(M) \to H^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(M)$$

for all $s \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\gamma = (\gamma_1, \ldots, \gamma_k)$ involved in g. If $\sigma_j(A) = 0$ for $j = 0, \ldots, k$ then (2.41) is compact.

Proof. The spaces $H^{s,\gamma}(M)$ are defined in an analogous manner as (2.9) and $L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g})$ locally near $s_k(M)$ consists of all $\operatorname{Op}_{y_k}(a)$ for $a(y_k, \eta_k) \in R^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g})$, cf. Definition 2.1. Because of

$$R^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g}) \subset S^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})).$$

This entails the continuity of

$$\operatorname{Op}_{\mu_{k}}(a): \mathcal{W}^{s}(\mathbb{R}^{q_{k}}, \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})) \to \mathcal{W}^{s-\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_{k}}, \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge}))$$

which is the main contribution to the continuity of (2.41). The contribution from the "int"-part of A is known by the iterative step before.

2.4. The Calculus for Singular Cones

Operators on singular cones are an aspect of the edge symbolic calculus, analogously as operators on the half-axis normal to a boundary appearing as boundary symbols in boundary value problems. On singular spaces $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ in general for convenience we assumed that M is compact. However, the symbolic structure of operators living on M requires considering infinite cones B^{Δ} for $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$ which have difficult conical exits to infinity. Therefore, we establish here as a tool the parameter-dependend operator classes

(2.42)
$$L^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\})$$

living on an open stretched cone B^{\wedge} for a $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$. It would be more consequent to write $L^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d)$ rather than (2.42) but our notation points out the specific aspect of interpreting $r_k \to \infty$ as a conical exit to ∞ which may contribute additional exit symbols. However, we first concentrate on asymptotic effects and Green and Mellin operators with meromorphic Mellin symbols. Later on in this subsection we comment the nature of operators on the infinite cone from the point of view of other interesting aspects.

Weight data $\boldsymbol{g} := (\gamma_i, \gamma_i - \mu, \Theta_i)_{i=1,...,k}$ for weight intervals $\Theta_i = (-(\vartheta_i + 1), 0], \vartheta_i \in \mathbb{N}$, in the case $B := X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ only consist of one component; before we often wrote β rather than γ_1 . Let us start the consideration with Green operators and Mellin operators with asymptotics. First we establish discrete asymptotic types and singular functions. A discrete asymptotic type associated with weight data (α, Θ) and dimension $b := \dim B$, for a weight $\alpha \in \mathbb{R}$ and a weight interval $\Theta = (-(\vartheta + 1), 0]$ for a $\vartheta \in \mathbb{N} \cup \{\infty\}$ is a sequence

$$(2.43) \qquad \qquad \mathcal{P} := \{(p_j, m_j)\}_{j=1,\dots,N} \subset \mathbb{C} \times \mathbb{N}$$

such that $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{P} := \{p_j\}_{j=1,\dots,N}$ is finite if ϑ is finite, otherwise $\operatorname{Re} p_j \to \infty$ for $j \to \infty$ and

$$\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{P} \subset \{v \in \mathbb{C} : (b+1)/2 - \alpha + \vartheta < \operatorname{Re} v < (b+1)/2 - \alpha\}.$$

26

Definition 2.16. The space of singular functions $\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{P}_k}(B^{\wedge})$ over $B^{\wedge}, B \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}$, for a finite asymptotic type \mathcal{P}_k associated with the weight data (γ_k, Θ_k) is defined as the set

(2.44)
$$\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{P}_k}(B^{\wedge}) := \{ \omega_k \sum_{j=0}^N \sum_{l=0}^{m_j} c_{jl} r_k^{-p_j} \log^l r_k : c_{jl} \in H_{\mathcal{Q}}^{\infty,\beta}(B) \},$$

where $\omega_k = \omega_k(r_k)$ is a cut-off function and $\mathcal{Q} := (\mathcal{Q}_1, \ldots, \mathcal{Q}_{k-1})$ is a tuple of asymptotic types with \mathcal{Q}_j being associated with the weight data $(\gamma_j, \Theta_j), j = 1, \ldots, k-1$.

Definition 2.16 is inductive, and for k = 1 and X^{\wedge} instead of B^{\wedge} for $X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$ we recover the case treated in [53] or [56]. The spaces $\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{P}_k}(B^{\wedge})$ are Fréchet in a natural way, and similarly as for k = 1 we can form the spaces

$$(2.45) \quad \mathcal{K}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k}_{\mathcal{Q},\Theta_k}(B^\wedge) := \left(\lim_{\substack{0 < \varepsilon < \vartheta_k + 1}} \mathcal{K}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k - \vartheta_k - \varepsilon}(B^\wedge) \right) \cap \mathcal{K}^{s,\beta}_{\mathcal{Q}}((2\mathbb{B})^\wedge)|_{(B \setminus s_{k-1}(B))^\wedge},$$

as well as the non-direct sum

(2.46)
$$\mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{P}_k}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge}) := \mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{Q},\Theta_k}^{s;\beta,\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge}) + \mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{Q},\mathcal{P}_k}(B^{\wedge}).$$

In future we apply again notation $\gamma = (\beta, \gamma_k)$ and we write \mathcal{P} rather than $(\mathcal{Q}, \mathcal{P}_k)$, and we also form the spaces $\mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{P}}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) := [r_k]^{-e}\mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{P}}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$ for any $e \in \mathbb{R}$. The spaces $H_{\mathcal{Q}}^{\infty,\beta}(B)$ occurring in (2.44) are also defined in an iterative manner, using $\mathcal{W}^s(\mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}}, \mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{Q}}^{s,\beta}(C^{\wedge}))$, where *B* is locally near $s_{k-1}(B)$ modeled on $C^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}}$ for some $C \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2}$.

Definition 2.17. An element $g(y_k, \eta_k) \in S^{\mu}_{cl}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge}))$ is called a Green symbol if

(2.47)
$$g(y_k,\eta_k) \in S^{\mu}_{\mathrm{cl}}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}; \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu;\infty}_{\mathcal{P}}(B^{\wedge})),$$

$$(2.48) g^*(y_k,\eta_k) \in S^{\mu}_{\rm cl}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}; \mathcal{K}^{s,-\gamma+\mu;e}(B^{\wedge}), \mathcal{K}^{\infty,-\gamma;\infty}_{\mathcal{S}}(B^{\wedge}))$$

for all $s, e \in \mathbb{R}$, where " g^* " indicates the $\mathcal{K}^{0,0}(B^{\wedge})$ -adjoint of g, and $\mathcal{P} = (\mathcal{P})_{k=1,\ldots,k}$, $\mathcal{S} = (\mathcal{S})_{k=1,\ldots,k}$, are asymptotic types depending on g.

Remark 2.18. By definition Green symbols exist on every singular level, in particular, for k - 1, and we can formally replace the covariable η_k by (η_k, ζ) . As such they generate the operator class $L^{\mu}_{G}(B, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d) \subset L^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d)$ with notation as in Subsection 1.5. If we drop (y_k, η_k) at all, then instead of Green symbols as in Definition 2.17 we simply obtain parameter-dependent operators

(2.49)
$$G(\zeta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu;\infty}_{\mathcal{P}}(B^{\wedge})$$

(2.50)
$$G^*(\zeta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma;e}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu;\infty}_{\mathcal{S}}(B^{\wedge}).$$

Those furnish the subclass

$$L^{\mu}_{\mathrm{G}}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\}) \subset L^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\})$$

of Green operators on the singular cone B^{\wedge} .

Let us now define other subclasses, called smoothing Mellin plus Green operators. Those are also important both over B as well as over B^{\wedge} . Let us first give a definition of asymptotic types for smoothing Mellin symbols. Such an asymptotic type is a sequence

$$\mathcal{R} := \{(r_j, n_j)\}_{j \in \mathbb{Z}} \subset \mathbb{C} \times \mathbb{N}$$

such that $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R} := \{(r_j)\}_{j \in \mathbb{Z}}$ intersects every strip $\{v \in \mathbb{C} : c \leq \operatorname{Re} v \leq c'\}$ for finite $c \leq c'$ in a finite set of points.

Definition 2.19. By $M_{\mathcal{R}}^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B)$ we denote the set of all

$$f \in \mathcal{A}(\mathbb{C} \setminus \pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}, L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B))$$

which are meromorphic with poles at the points of $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}$ of multiplicity $n_j + 1$ and Laurent coefficients of finite rank belonging to $L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B)$. In addition it is required that for every $\pi_{\mathbb{C}}\mathcal{R}$ -excision function χ we have $\chi f|_{\Gamma_{\lambda}} \in \mathcal{S}(\Gamma_{\lambda}, L^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B))$ for every λ , uniformly for compact λ -intervals.

Smoothing Mellin operators associated with the weight interval $(-(\vartheta_k + 1), 0]$ for $\vartheta_k \in \mathbb{N}$ on the singularity level $k \in \mathbb{N}$ are written in the form

(2.51)
$$M := r_k^{-\mu} \omega_{k,\zeta} \sum_{j=0}^{v_k} \sum_{|\alpha| \le j} r_k^j \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_{k,j\alpha} - b/2}(f_{j\alpha}) \zeta^{\alpha} \omega'_{k,\zeta}$$

for $\omega_{k,\zeta}(r_k) = \omega_k(r_k[\zeta])$ with ω_k being an excision function, arbitrary $f_{j\alpha}(v_k) \in M^{-\infty}_{\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B)$ for Mellin asymptotic types $\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha}$ and weights

$$\gamma_k - j \leq \gamma_{k,j\alpha} \leq \gamma_k$$
 such that $\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha} \cap \Gamma_{(b+1)/2} - \gamma_{k,j\alpha} = \emptyset$.

By $L_{M+G}^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\}) \subset L^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\})$ we denote the space of all operators M + G for arbitrary M of the form (2.51) and $G \in L_{G}^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^{d} \setminus \{0\})$. By modifying notation in (2.51) we obtain operator-valued symbols

(2.52)
$$m(y_k,\eta_k) := r_k^{-\mu} \omega_{k,\eta_k} \sum_{j=0}^{\nu_k} \sum_{|\alpha| \le j} r_k^j \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_{k,j\alpha}-b/2}(f_{j\alpha})(y_k) \eta_k^{\alpha} \omega'_{k,\eta_k}$$

for arbitrary $f_{j\alpha}(y_k, v_k) \in C^{\infty}(\Omega_k, M_{\mathcal{R}_{j\alpha}}^{-\infty}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B)), \Omega_k \subseteq \mathbb{R}^{q_k}$ open. Symbols $(m + g)(y_k, \eta_k)$ form a subspace $R_{M+G}^{\mu}(\mathbb{R}^{q_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g}) \subset R^{\mu}(\Omega_k \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}, \boldsymbol{g})$ constituting the subclass

$$L^{\mu}_{M+G}(M, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d) \subset L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d)$$

of smoothing Mellin plus Green operators in the calculus over $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$. Operators of the latter class play a similar role as those in the lower singular calculus, cf. [53] or [56], and they have similar properties. For $M = \operatorname{Op}_{y_k}(m)$, $m(y_k, \eta_k)$ as in (2.52) we define

$$\sigma_k(M)(y_k,\eta_k) := r_k^{-\mu} \omega_{k,|\eta_k|} \sum_{j=0}^{\vartheta_k} \sum_{|\alpha|=j} r_k^j \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_{k,j\alpha}-b/2}(f_{j\alpha})(y_k) \eta_k^{\alpha} \omega'_{k,|\eta_k|}$$

for $\omega_{k,|\eta_k|}(r_k) := \omega_k(r_k|\eta_k|)$, etc.

The operator space (2.42) with parameter $\zeta \in \mathbb{R}^d \setminus \{0\}$ is defined as the set of all operator families

(2.53)
$$A(\zeta) = H(\zeta) + (M+G)(\zeta) + C(\zeta)$$

for $(M+G)(\zeta) \in L^{\mu}_{M+G}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}; \mathbb{R}^d \setminus \{0\})$ and

(2.54)
$$H(\zeta) := r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(\zeta)$$

for arbitrary $h(r_k, v_k, \zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_B; \mathbb{R}^d_{r_k \zeta}).$

Theorem 2.20. Operators $A(\zeta)$ in (2.42) induce continuous operators

(2.55)
$$A(\zeta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})$$

and

(2.56)
$$A(\zeta) + (M+G)(\zeta) : \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}_{\mathcal{P}}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B^{\wedge})$$

for every \mathcal{P} with some resulting \mathcal{Q} .

Proof. The continuity of $A(\zeta)$ in (2.55) is a consequence of the definition of spaces $\mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge})$, cf. Definition 2.8. The continuity of $G(\zeta)$ in (2.55), more precisely, of

$$G(\zeta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})$$

is part of the definition of Green operators, and the continuity of $M(\zeta)$ in (2.55), in fact, $M(\zeta): \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{\infty,\gamma-\mu}(B^{\wedge})$ can be reduced to order zero by composing with reductions of orders that are involved in Definition 2.8. The order reductions preserve smoothing Mellin plus Green operators, and the result for s = 0 is a simple consequence. The claimed continuity of $A(\zeta)$ in (2.56) in spaces $\mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{Q},\Theta_k}^{s;\beta\gamma_k}(B^{\wedge})$ is a consequence of the former continuity on the flat spaces on the right-hand side of (2.45) combined with commutation of powers of r_k through the Mellin action, see relation (2.39) and the higher analogue of Theorem 1.3 (iv). Moreover, singular functions in (2.44) are mapped via the Mellin transform to meromorphic functions with $H_{\mathcal{Q}}^{\infty,\beta}(B)$ -valued Laurent coefficients. The multiplication by holomorphic Mellin symbols involved in $A(\zeta)$ gives us again such meromorphic functions. Subsequent application of the inverse Mellin transform gives us back such asymptotic terms in r_k , except for the cut-off factor. However, decomposing the identity into $\sigma_k + (1 - \sigma_k)$ the summand containing σ_k is of the type of a singular function, while the summand with $(1 - \sigma_k)$ just belongs to (2.45) for $s = -\infty$. Thus the continuity of $A(\zeta)$ in (2.46) is verified. For $G(\zeta)$ the claimed continuity is clear by definition, while for $M(\zeta)$ we can argue for each summand separately. The arguments are the analogous as for $A(\zeta)$ in (2.46).

2.5. Operators of Third Singularity Order

Let us now analyze the structure of operators in $M \in \mathfrak{M}_k$ for k = 3,

(2.57)
$$M := B_{k-1}^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k} \ni (r_k, x_{k-1}, y_k), \ B_{k-1} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-1}.$$

Here, in abuse of notation, we write coordinates in stretched form, i.e., from $B_{k-1}^{\wedge} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}}$. We successively assume

$$B_{k-1} := B_{k-2}^{\wedge} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_{k-1}} \ni (r_{k-1}, x_{k-2}, y_{k-1}), B_{k-2} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-2},$$

$$B_{k-2} := B_{k-3}^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_{k-2}} \ni (r_{k-2}, x_{k-3}, y_{k-2}), \ B_{k-3} \in \mathfrak{M}_{k-3}$$

etc. The end of the iteration is given by the space

$$B_1 = X^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1} \ni (r_1, x_0, y_1), \, X \in \mathfrak{M}_0$$

for $x_0 =: x \in X$, and X compact.

Similarly as for corner-degenerate differential operators of Subsection 2.1 where k = 2, for any $D \in L^{\mu}(M, \boldsymbol{g}_k)$ we first have the principal symbol of k-th order

(2.58)
$$\sigma_k(D)(y_k,\eta_k).$$

But then, for the lower order principal symbols, we look at the configuration off $r_k = 0$ such that $(r_k, y_k) \in \mathbb{R}_{+, r_k} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_k}$ become additional edge-variables. Thus,

(2.59)
$$\sigma_{k-1}(D)(r_k, y_{k-1}, y_k, \rho_k, \eta_{k-1}, \eta_k)$$

In this case ρ_k has the meaning of the Fourier covariable of the edge coordinate $r_k \in \mathbb{R}_+$. In other words, not (y_{k-1}, η_{k-1}) form variables and covariables on the edge of order k-1 but $(r_k, y_{k-1}, y_k, \rho_k, \eta_{k-1}, \eta_k)$. In a similar manner, not (y_{k-j}, η_{k-j}) for j > 1 are variables and covariables of the edge of order k-j, but variables and covariables in

$$\sigma_{k-j}(D)((r_{k-j+1}, y_{k-j+1}), \dots, (r_{k-1}, y_{k-1}), r_k, y_k, (\rho_{k-j+1}, \eta_{k-j+1}), \dots, (\rho_{k-1}, \eta_{k-1}), \rho_k, \eta_k).$$

At the end of the iteration it follows that

(2.61)
$$\sigma_0(D)((r_1, x, y_1), \dots, (r_{k-j}, y_{k-j}), \dots, (r_{k-1}, y_{k-1}), y_k, (\rho_1, \xi, \eta_1), \dots, (\rho_{k-j}, \eta_{k-j}), \dots, (\rho_{k-1}, \eta_{k-1}), \eta_k).$$

$$A(\zeta) = r_k^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_M^{\gamma_k - b/2}(h)(\zeta) \quad \text{for} \quad h(r_k, v_k, \zeta) \in M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_k}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta}; \mathbb{R}^d_{r_k \zeta})$$

We now consider a pseudo-differential example of operators in $L^{\mu}(B^{\wedge}, \boldsymbol{g}, \mathbb{R}^{d}_{\zeta})$ for, say, $B \in \mathfrak{M}_{2}$; then $B^{\wedge} \in \mathfrak{M}_{3}$. We consider the case $d := q_{3}, \zeta := \eta_{3}$ and

$$B^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_3} = \left(\left(B_1^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1} \right)^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2} \right)^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_3}$$

The operators $D_3 \in L^{\mu}(B^{\Delta} \times \mathbb{R}^{q_3}, \boldsymbol{g})$ have third order edge symbols of the form

(2.62)
$$A_3 := r_3^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_3}}^{\gamma_3 - b_2/2}(h_0)(y_3, \eta_3)$$

with $r_3^{-\mu}$ being regarded as part of the operation

$$A_3: \mathcal{K}^{s,\gamma_4}(B^{\wedge}) \to \mathcal{K}^{s-\mu,\gamma_4-\mu}(B^{\wedge}).$$

For convenience we consider operators

(2.63)
$$D_3 := \varphi_3 \operatorname{Op}_{y_3} \left\{ \sigma_3 r_3^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_3}}^{\gamma_3 - b_2/2}(f_3)(y_3, \eta_3) \sigma_3' \right\} \varphi_3'$$

30

for $b_2 := \dim B_1 + 1 + q_1$ and B^{\wedge} with (third order) edge $\mathbb{R}^{q_3} \ni y_3$, where $\varphi_3, \varphi_3' \in C_0^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^{q_3}), \varphi_3 \prec \varphi_3'$, and σ_3, σ_3' are cut-off functions on the \mathbb{R}_{+,r_3} half-axis, $\sigma_3 \prec \sigma_3'$. Moreover, $f(r_3, y_3, v_3, \eta_3) := \tilde{f}(r_3, y_3, v_3, \tilde{\eta}_3)|_{\tilde{\eta}_3 = r_3 \eta_3}, \tilde{f}(r_3, y_3, v_3, \tilde{\eta}_3) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_3}, M_{\mathcal{O}}^{\mu}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta}; \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{\tilde{\eta}_3}))$, and

$$h_0(r_3, y_3, v_3, \eta_3) = f(0, y_3, v_3, r_3\eta_3).$$

The absence of cut-off functions in (2.62) is explained by the structure of edge symbols where ζ plays the role of the edge covariable $\eta_3 \neq 0$ and the first r_3 in \tilde{f} is frozen at zero. Similarly as in Section 1 we have twisted homogeneity

(2.64)
$$A(\delta\eta_3) = \delta^{\mu} \kappa_{\delta} A(\eta_3) \kappa_{\delta}^{-1} \quad \text{for} \quad \delta \in \mathbb{R}_+$$

Observe that for cut-off functions $\omega_3 \prec \omega'_3$ in r_3 the operator families

$$\omega_3 A(\eta_3)(1-\omega'_3)$$
 and $(1-\omega'_3)A(\eta_3)\omega_3$

are homogeneous Green symbols. Recall that in the definition of Kegel spaces we imposed a specific ellipticity which is not typical for our Mellin symbols in general. But we want to illustrate the iterative structure and the higher corner-degenerate behaviour. The position of lower order degenerate Mellin symbols within h is as follows. We can apply the principle of sleeping parameters which are successively wakened to induce higher singular operators. Let us assume in our example that

$$f_3(r_3, y_3, v_3, \eta_3)$$

consists of parameter-dependent operators of the form

(2.65)
$$\varphi_2 \operatorname{Op}_{y_2} \{ \sigma_2 r_2^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_2}}^{\gamma_2 - b_2/2} (f_2)(y_2, \eta_2) \sigma_2' \} \varphi_2',$$

for

(2.66)
$$f_2(r_2, y_2, v_2, \eta_2) := \tilde{f}_2(r_2, y_2, v_2, \tilde{\eta}_2)|_{\tilde{\eta}_2 = r_2 \eta_2}$$

(2.67)
$$\tilde{f}_2(r_2, y_2, v_2, \tilde{\eta}_2) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_2}, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_2}}(B_1, \boldsymbol{g}_1; \mathbb{R}^{q_2}_{\tilde{\eta}_2}))$$

where $\varphi_2, \varphi'_2 \in C_0^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^{q_2}), \varphi_2 \prec \varphi'_2$, and σ_2, σ'_2 are cut off functions on the \mathbb{R}_{+,r_2} half-axis, $\sigma_2 \prec \sigma'_2$. Moreover, we assume that

$$f_2(r_2, y_2, v_2, \eta_2)$$

consists of parameter-dependent operators of the form

(2.68)
$$\varphi_0 \operatorname{Op}_x \varphi_1 \operatorname{Op}_{y_1} \left\{ \sigma_1 r_1^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_1}}^{\gamma_1 - n/2} (f_1) (y_1, \eta_1) \sigma_1' \right\} \varphi_1' \varphi_0'$$

for

(2.69)
$$f_1(r_1, x, \xi, y_1, v_1, \eta_1) := \tilde{f}_1(r_1, x, \xi, y_1, v_1, \tilde{\eta}_1)|_{\tilde{\eta}_1 = r_1 \eta_1}$$

(2.70)
$$\tilde{f}_1(r_1, y_1, v_1, \tilde{\eta}_1) \in C^{\infty}(\overline{\mathbb{R}}_+ \times \mathbb{R}^{q_1}, M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}_{v_1}}(X; \mathbb{R}^{q_1}_{\tilde{\eta}_1}))$$

where $\varphi_1, \varphi'_1 \in C_0^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^{q_1}), \varphi_0, \varphi'_0 \in C_0^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^n)$ for $n = \dim X, \varphi_1 \prec \varphi'_1, \varphi_0 \prec \varphi'_0$, and σ_1, σ'_1 are cut-off functions on the \mathbb{R}_{+,r_1} half-axis, $\sigma_1 \prec \sigma'_1$. Then it follows altogether

(2.71)
$$D_{3} = \varphi_{0} \operatorname{Op}_{x} \varphi_{1} \operatorname{Op}_{y_{1}} \left\{ \sigma_{1} r_{1}^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_{1}}}^{\gamma_{1}-n/2} \varphi_{2} \operatorname{Op}_{y_{2}} \left\{ \sigma_{2} r_{2}^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_{2}}}^{\gamma_{2}-b_{2}/2} \right. \\ \left. \varphi_{3} \operatorname{Op}_{y_{3}} \left\{ \sigma_{3} r_{3}^{-\mu} \operatorname{Op}_{M_{r_{3}}}^{\gamma_{3}-b_{2}/2} (m_{3}) \sigma_{3}' \varphi_{3}' \right\} \sigma_{2}' \right\} \varphi_{2}' \sigma_{1}' \right\} \varphi_{1}' \varphi_{0}'$$

for the corner-degenerate Mellin-Fourier-symbol

$$m := m(r_1, r_2, r_3, x, y_1, y_2, y_3, \xi, v_1, r_1v_2, r_1r_2v_3, r_1\eta_1, r_1r_2\eta_2, r_1r_2r_3\eta_3),$$

where v_i in the simplest case stands for $i\varrho_i$ in the complex v_i -plane, corresponding to weights $\gamma_i = 0$ for all i.

More general examples of elements in $M^{\mu}_{\mathcal{O}}(B, \boldsymbol{g}_{\beta}, \mathbb{R}^{q_k}_{r_k \eta_k})$, also for higher k are obtained together with kernel cut-offs as sums of expressions of the above-mentioned kind, when the functions φ_l vary over a partition of unity on $s_l(B)$ and $\varphi'_l \succ \varphi_l$ are smooth functions of compact support. By admitting extra parameters ι_k of the same degenerate behaviour as η_k , and also for the involved lower singular levels, the emerging functions $h(\iota_k, r_k, v_k, \eta_k)$ induce families of continuous operators

(2.72)
$$h(\iota_k, r_k, v_k, \eta_k) : H^{s,\beta}(B) \to H^{s-\mu,\beta-\mu}(B)$$

Then

(2.73)
$$\| (D_{r_k}^m h)(\iota_k, r_k, v_k, \eta_k) \|_{\mathcal{L}(H^{s,\beta}(B), H^{s-\mu,\beta-\mu}(B))} \le c_\alpha \langle r_k \rangle^{-m}$$

for every $m \in \mathbb{N}$. If we briefly set $H := H^{s,\beta}(B), \, \widetilde{H} := H^{s-\mu,\beta-\mu}(B)$ we obtain

(2.74)
$$S^{\mu;0}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}; H, H)$$

which is a space of operator-valued symbols with interior order μ and exit order 0 for $r \to \infty$. Here \mathbb{R} is the space of covariables and can be interpreted as a parallel to the imaginary axis Γ_{λ} in the complex plane. On the level of principal symbols with respect to $\rho \in \mathbb{R}$ we may interprete Γ_{λ} as Γ_{λ_0} for any real λ_0 , as a consequence of the holomorphy of Mellin symbols in v_k and Cauchy's theorem. Observe that if $h(r, \rho)$ belongs to (2.74) then

$$D_r^m D_o^n h(r,\rho) \in S^{\mu-m;-n}(\mathbb{R}_+ \times \mathbb{R}; H, \widetilde{H}).$$

Also the mapping properties of operators in $\mathcal{L}(H, \tilde{H})$ becomes better under differentiation, e.g., the resulting operators become compact for m > 0, n > 0.

(2.75)
$$\mathcal{A} = \begin{pmatrix} A & K \\ T & Q \end{pmatrix} : \begin{array}{c} H^{s,\gamma}(M,E) & H^{s-\mu,\gamma-\mu}(M,F) \\ \oplus & \to & \oplus \\ H^s(Y,J) & H^{s-\mu}(Y,G) \end{array}$$

The motivation of such operator block matrices comes from elliptic theory. Assuming that A is σ_0 -elliptic, i.e., that

$$\sigma_0(A): \pi^*E \to \pi^*F$$

for $\pi : T^*(s_0(M)) \setminus 0 \to s_0(M)$ is an isomorphism and also the reduced symbol close to Y in the local splitting of variables (r, x, y) with covariables (ρ, ξ, η) defined by $\tilde{\sigma}_0(A)(r, x, y, \rho, \xi, \eta) := r^{\mu}\sigma_0(A)(r, x, y, r^{-1}\rho, \xi, r^{-1}\eta)$

$$\tilde{\sigma}_0(A)(r, x, y, \rho, \xi, \eta) : E_{(r, x, y)} \to F_{(r, x, y)}$$

for all $(\rho, \xi, \eta) \neq 0$, up to r = 0.

Acknowledgment. This research project is partially supported by an NSF grant DMS-1408839 and a McDevitt Endowment Fund at Georgetown University. The paper is based on lectures which were given by the authors at the National Center for Theoretical Sciences, Taipei, Taiwan during May 24-26, 2016. They would like to express their profound gratitude to the Director of NCTS, Professor Jungkai Chen for his invitation and for the warm hospitality extended to them during their stay in Taiwan. The authors would also like to thank Mahdi Hedayat Mahmoudi for his careful reading of the manuscript and insight discussion of the material of this subject.

References

- S. Agmon, A. Douglis, and L. Nirenberg, Estimates near the boundary for solutions of elliptic partial differential equations satisfying general boundary conditions I, Comm. Pure Appl. Math., 12 (1959), 623-727.
- [2] M.F. Atiyah and I.M. Singer, *The index of elliptic operators I, II, III*, Ann. of Math. (2), 87 (1968), 483-530, 531-545, 546-604.
- [3] M.F. Atiyah, and R. Bott, *The index problem for manifolds with boundary*, Coll. Differential Analysis, Tata Institute Bombay, Oxford University Press, Oxford 1964, pp. 175-186.
- [4] L. Boutet de Monvel, Boundary problems for pseudo-differential operators, Acta Math. 126 (1971), 11-51.
- [5] D. Calvo, C.-I. Martin, and B.-W. Schulze, *Symbolic structures on corner manifolds*, RIMS Conf. dedicated to L. Boutet de Monvel on "Microlocal Analysis and Asymptotic Analysis", Kyoto, August 2004, Keio University, Tokyo, 2005, pp. 22-35.
- [6] D. Calvo and B.-W. Schulze, Edge symbolic structure of second generation, Math. Nachr. 282 (2009), 348-367.
- [7] D.-C. Chang, N. Habal, and B.-W. Schulze, *Quantisation on a manifold with singular edge*, NCTS Preprints in Mathematics **2013-1-002**, Taiwan, 2013. J. Pseudo-Differ Oper Appl. 4, 3 (2013), 317-343.
- [8] D.-C. Chang, N. Habal, and B.-W. Schulze, *The edge algebra structure of the Zaremba problem*, NCTS Preprints in Mathematics **2013-6-002**, Taiwan, 2013. J. Pseudo-Differ. Oper. Appl. 5, 1 (2014), 69-155.
- [9] D.-C. Chang, W. Rungrottheera, and B.-W. Schulze, *Recent developments on pseudo-differential operators (I)*, NCTS Preprints in Mathematics 2014-7-001, TKJM (Tamkang Journal of Mathematics) 46, 1 (2015), 1-30.
- [10] D.-C. Chang, X. Lyu, and B.-W. Schulze, *Recent developments on pseudo-differential operators (II)*, NCTS Preprints in Mathematics **2014-11-002**, TKJM (Tamkang Journal of Mathematics) **46**, 3 (2015), 281-347.
- [11] D.-C. Chang, M. Hedayat Mahmoudi, and B.-W. Schulze, Pseudo-differential analysis with twisted symbolic structure, (to appear 2016).
- [12] D.-C. Chang, B.-W. Schulze, *Ellipticity on spaces with higher singularities*, 2016, (in preparation)
- [13] N. Dines, *Elliptic operators on corner manifolds*, Ph.D. thesis, University of Potsdam, 2006.
- [14] Ch. Dorschfeldt, Algebras of pseudo-differential operators near edge and corner singularities, Math. Research 102, Wiley-VCH, Berlin, 1998.
- [15] Ju. V. Egorov and B.-W. Schulze, *Pseudo-differential operators, singularities, appli*cations, Oper. Theory: Adv. Appl. 93, Birkhäuser Verlag, Basel, 1997.
- [16] G.I. Eskin, Boundary value problems for elliptic pseudodifferential equations, Transl. of Nauka, Moskva, 1973, Math. Monographs, Amer. Math. Soc. 52, Providence, Rhode Island 1980.
- [17] H.-J. Flad, G. Harutyunyan, R. Schneider, and B.-W. Schulze, Explicit Green operators for quantum mechanical Hamiltonians. I. manuscripta math. 135 (2011), 497-519.

- [18] H.-J. Flad and G. Harutyunyan, Ellipticity of quantum mechanical Hamiltonians in the edge algebra, Proc. AIMS Conference on Dynamical Systems, Differential Equations and Applications, Dresden, 2010.
- [19] {Flad6} H.-J. Flad, G. Harutyunyan, and B.-W. Schulze Explicit Green operators for quantum mechanical Hamiltonians. II. Edge singularities of the helium atom, in preparation.
- [20] J.B. Gil, B.-W. Schulze, and J. Seiler, Cone pseudodifferential operators in the edge symbolic calculus, Osaka J. Math. 37 (2000), 221-260.
- [21] G. Grubb, Functional calculus of pseudo-differential boundary problems, Second Edition, Birkhäuser Verlag, Boston, 1996.
- [22] N. Habal and B.-W. Schulze, *Holomorphic corner symbols*, J. Pseudo-Differ. Oper. Appl. 2, 4 (2011), 419-465.
- [23] N. Habal and B.-W. Schulze, *Mellin quantisation in corner operators*, Operator Theory, Advances and Applications, Vol. 228, (Y.I. Karlovich et al. eds.), "Operator Theory, Pseudo-Differential Equations, and Mathematical Physics", The Vladimir Rabinovich Anniversary Volume, Birkhäuser, Basel, 2013, pp. 151-172.
- [24] G. Harutjunjan and B.-W. Schulze, *Elliptic mixed, transmission and singular crack problems*, European Mathematical Soc., Zürich, 2008.
- [25] G. Harutyunyan and B.-W. Schulze, *The relative index for corner singularities*, Integr. Equ. Oper. Theory 54, 3 (2006), 385-426.
- [26] M. Hedayat-Mahmoudi and B.-W. Schulze A new approach to the second order edge calculus, (in preparation, 2016).
- [27] L. Hörmander, Pseudo-differential operators, Comm. Pure Appl. Math. 18, 3 (1965), 501-517.
- [28] I. L. Hwang, The L²-boundedness of pseudodifferential operators, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 302 (1987), 55-76.
- [29] P. Jeanquartier, Transformation de Mellin et développements asymptotiques, Enseign. Math. (2) 25 (1979), 285-308.
- [30] D. Kapanadze and B.-W. Schulze, Crack theory and edge singularities, Kluwer Academic Publ., Dordrecht, 2003.
- [31] V.A. Kondratyev, Boundary value problems for elliptic equations in domains with conical points, Trudy Mosk. Mat. Obshch. 16, (1967), 209-292.
- [32] T. Krainer, Parabolic pseudo-differential operators and long-time asymptotics of solutions, Ph.D. thesis, University of Potsdam, 2000.
- [33] H. Kumano-go, *Pseudo-differential operators*, The MIT Press, Cambridge, Massachusetts and London, England, 1981.
- [34] J.E. Lewis and C. Parenti, *Pseudodifferential operators of Mellin type*, Comm. Part. Diff. Equ. 8, 5 (1983),447-544.
- [35] X. Liu and B.-W. Schulze, *Ellipticity on manifolds with edges and boundary*, Monatshefte f
 ür Mathematik 146, 4 (2005), 295-331.
- [36] X. Lyu and B.-W. Schulze, Mellin operators in the edge calculus, Complex Analysis and Operator Theory, 11, (2015). DOI 10.1007/s11785-015-0511-6.
- [37] X. Lyu and B.-W. Schulze, Higher corner spaces with iterated asymptotics, and Green plus Mellin operators, Lecture Notes TICMI, vol. 15, 2014, pp. 1-26.

- [38] X. Lyu and B.-W. Schulze, Mellin operators in the edge calculus, Complex Analysis and Operator Theory, 11, (2015). DOI 10.1007/s11785-015-0511-6.
- [39] L. Maniccia and B.-W. Schulze, An algebra of meromorphic corner symbols, Bull. des Sciences Math. 127, 1 (2003), 55-99.
- [40] B.A. Plamenevskij, On the boundedness of singular integrals in spaces with weight, Mat. Sbornik 25, 4 (1968), 573-592.
- [41] B.A. Plamenevskij and V.N. Senichkin, On the representation of algebras of pseudodifferential operators on manifolds with discontinuous symbols (Russian), Izv. Akad. Nauk SSSR 51, 4 (1987), 833-859.
- [42] V.S. Rabinovich, Pseudo-differential operators in non-bounded domains with conical structure at infinity, Mat. Sb. 80 (1969), 77-97.
- [43] V.S. Rabinovich, Mellin pseudo-differential operators with operator symbols and their applications, Operator Theory: Adv. and Appl., Birkhäuser Verlag, Basel, 78 (1995), 271-279.
- [44] S. Rempel and B.-W. Schulze, Parametrices and boundary symbolic calculus for elliptic boundary problems without transmission property, Math. Nachr. 105 (1982), 45-149.
- [45] S. Rempel and B.-W. Schulze, Index theory of elliptic boundary problems, Akademie-Verlag, Berlin, 1982.
- [46] S. Rempel and B.-W. Schulze, Complete Mellin and Green symbolic calculus in spaces with conormal asymptotics, Ann. Glob. Anal. Geom. 4, 2 (1986), 137-224.
- [47] S. Rempel and B.-W. Schulze, Asymptotics for elliptic mixed boundary problems (pseudo-differential and Mellin operators in spaces with conormal singularity), Math. Res. 50, Akademie-Verlag, Berlin, 1989.
- [48] Rungrottheera W. Parameter-dependent corner operators. Asian-Eur J Math. 2013;6:1–29.
- [49] W. Rungrottheera and B.-W. Schulze, Weighted spaces on corner manifolds, Complex Variables and Elliptic Equations, DOI:10.1080/17476933.2013.876416.
- [50] W. Rungrottheera, B.-W. Schulze, and M.W. Wong Iterative properties of pseudodifferential operators on edge spaces, J. Pseudo-Differ. Oper. Appl. (2014) 5 455479. DOI 10.1007/s11868-014-0100-x
- [51] B.-W. Schulze, Corner Mellin operators and reduction of orders with parameters, Ann. Sc. Norm. Sup. Pisa Cl. Sci. 16, 1 (1989), 1-81.
- [52] B.-W. Schulze, Pseudo-differential operators on manifolds with edges, Teubner-Texte zur Mathematik 112, Symp. "Partial Differential Equations, Holzhau 1988", BSB Teubner, Leipzig, 1989, pp. 259-287.
- [53] B.-W. Schulze, Pseudo-differential operators on manifolds with singularities, North-Holland, Amsterdam, 1991.
- [54] B.-W. Schulze, The Mellin pseudo-differential calculus on manifolds with corners, Teubner-Texte zur Mathematik 131, Symp. "Analysis in Domains and on Manifolds with Singularities", Breitenbrunn 1990. BSB Teubner, Leipzig, 1992, pp. 208-289.
- [55] B.-W. Schulze, *Pseudo-differential boundary value problems, conical singularities, and asymptotics, Akademie Verlag, Berlin, 1994.*

- [56] B.-W. Schulze, Boundary value problems and singular pseudo-differential operators, J. Wiley, Chichester, 1998.
- [57] B.-W. Schulze, Operators with symbol hierarchies and iterated asymptotics, Publications of RIMS, Kyoto University 38, 4 (2002), 735-802.
- [58] B.-W. Schulze, *The iterative structure of the corner calculus*, Oper. Theory: Adv. Appl. **213**, Pseudo-Differential Operators: Analysis, Application and Computations (L. Rodino et al. eds.), Birkhäuser Verlag, Basel, 2011, pp. 79-103.
- [59] B.-W. Schulze and J. Seiler, The edge algebra structure of boundary value problems, Ann. Glob. Anal. Geom. 22 (2002), 197-265.
- [60] B.-W. Schulze and L. Tepoyan, *The singular functions of branching edge asymptotics*, arXiv:1202.0387v2 [math.AP]; Oper. Theory: Adv. Appl. **231**,Pseudo-Differential Operators, Generalized Functions and Asymptotics (S. Molahajloo, S. Pilipovič, J. Toft, and M.W. Wong eds.), Birkhäuser Verlag, Basel, 2013, pp. 27-53.
- [61] B.-W. Schulze and Yawei Wei, The Mellin-edge quantisation for corner operators, arXiv:1201.6525v1 [math.AP]. Complex Analysis and Operator Theory, published online: 27 February 2013, 10.1007/s11785-013-0289-3.
- [62] B.-W. Schulze and M.W. Wong, Mellin and Green operators of the corner calculus, J. Pseudo-Differ. Oper. Appl. 2, 4 (2011), 467-507.
- [63] B.-W. Schulze and M.W. Wong, *Mellin operators with asymptotics on manifolds with corners*, Oper. Theory: Adv. Appl. **213**, Pseudo-Differential Operators: Analysis, Application and Computations (L. Rodino et al. eds.), Birkhäuser Verlag, Basel, 2011, pp. 31-78.
- [64] J. Seiler, Continuity of edge and corner pseudo-differential operators, Math. Nachr. 205 (1999), 163-182.
- [65] J. Seiler, The cone algebra and a kernel characterization of Green operators, Oper. Theory Adv. Appl. 125 Adv. in Partial Differential Equations "Approaches to Singular Analysis" (J. Gil, D. Grieser, and M. Lesch, eds.), Birkhäuser, Basel, 2001, pp. 1-29.
- [66] J. Seiler, Pseudodifferential calculus on manifolds with non-compact edges, Ph.D. thesis, University of Potsdam, 1997.
- [67] M.A. Shubin, *Pseudodifferential operators in* \mathbb{R}^n , Dokl. Akad. Nauk SSSR **196** (1971), 316-319.
- [68] M.I. Vishik and G.I. Eskin, Convolution equations in a bounded region, Uspekhi Mat. Nauk 20, 3 (1965), 89-152.
- [69] M.I. Vishik and V.V. Grushin, On a class of degenerate elliptic equations of higher orders, Mat. Sb. 79, 1 (1969), 3-36.
- [70] S. Zaremba, Sur in probleme mixte relatif a l'équation de Laplace, Bull. de l'Académie des Sciences de Cracovie, Classe des Sciences Mathématiques et Naturelles, Series A, 1910, pp. 313-344.

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Georgetown University, Washington D.C. 20057, USA., Department of Mathematics, Fu Jen Catholic University, Taipei 242, Taiwan, ROC

 $E\text{-}mail\ address: \texttt{chang@georgetown.edu}$

Institute of Mathematics, University of Potsdam, Am Neuen Palais 10, D-14469 Potsdam, Germany

E-mail address: schulze@math.uni-potsdam.de